
AGENDA 
Board of Trustees Meeting 

Madison County Mass Transit District 
8:30 a.m., Thursday, November 19, 2020 

Video/Teleconference 

 

   
Section Item Recommendation 

   
I. Pledge of Allegiance  
   

II. Call to Order:  Roll Call.  
   

III. Public Comments.  
   

IV. Consideration of the minutes of the October 29, 2020 regular 
meeting for inclusion in the official records of the District. Approval 

   
V. Financial:  

   
 A. Presentation of the FY2020 Audit: Scott Weber and Drew 

Nicol, Scheffel Boyle Approval 

   
 B. Payments and Claims: Consideration of the October 2020 

claims for payment. Approval 

   
 C. Monthly Financial Report: Review of the monthly financial 

records as of October 31, 2020. Approval 

   
VI. Transit Service:  

   
 A. Managing Director’s Report, SJ Morrison Information   
   
 B. Resolution 21-14 Authorizing the Fares and Fees for the 

District’s Regional Vanpool Program Approval 

   
 C. Resolution 21-15 Authorizing an Award of Contract to Oates 

Associates, Inc. for Design Services for Schoolhouse Trail 
Tunnel Under IL-157 

Approval 

   
VII. Other Business:  

   
VIII. Executive session to discuss the acquisition or lease of real 

property under (c)(5), and litigation under (c)(11) of the Open 
Meetings Act (5 ILCS 120/2). 

 

   
IX. Adjournment Approval 

 



1 

MINUTES 
Board of Trustees 

Madison County Mass Transit District 
One Transit Way, Granite City, Illinois 
8:30 a.m., Thursday, October 29, 2020 

I. Pledge of Allegiance

Chairman Jedda led the reciting of the Pledge of Allegiance.

II. Call to Order:  Roll Call

Chairman Jedda called the meeting to order at 8:30 a.m.

MEMBERS PRESENT: ALLEN P. ADOMITE, ANDREW F. ECONOMY, 
CHRISTOPHER C. GUY, RONALD L. JEDDA, AND J. 
KELLY SCHMIDT. 

MEMBER ABSENT: NONE. 

OTHERS PRESENT: TONYA GENOVESE, LEGAL COUNSEL; ANDREW 
CARRUTHERS, LEGAL COUNSEL; SJ MORRISON, ACT; 
SUMMER MOORE, ACT; MICHELLE DOMER, ACT; PHIL 
ROGGIO, ACT; MARK STEYER, ACT; JONATHAN 
CORTEZ, ACT; AMANDA SCHOMAKER, ACT; MARLA 
BROWN, ACT; TINA JOHNESSEE, ACT; TINA ROGIER, 
ACT; CAL MORRIS, AAIC, INC. 

III. Public Comments

No public comments were presented.

IV. Consideration of the Minutes of the September 24, 2020, regular meeting for
inclusion in the official records of the District.

TRUSTEE GUY MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE ECONOMY, TO
APPROVE THE MINUTES FOR INCLUSION IN THE OFFICIAL RECORDS OF THE
DISTRICT.

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED:

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE 
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE 
CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE 
RONALD L. JEDDA AYE 
J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE 

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED. 

V. Financial

A. Payments and Claims: Consideration of the August 2020 claims for payment:

Managing Director SJ Morrison presented the payments and claims report.

TRUSTEE ECONOMY MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE GUY, TO
APPROVE THE PAYMENTS AND CLAIMS TO THE CITY OF TROY AND THE
AGENCY FOR COMMUNITY TRANSIT.



2 

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED: 

ALLEN P. ADOMITE  ABSTAINED 
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE 
CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE 
RONALD L. JEDDA  AYE 
J. KELLY SCHMIDT ABSTAINED 

TRUSTEE ADOMITE & SCHMIDT ABSTAINED. ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION 
CARRIED. 

TRUSTEE GUY MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE ADOMITE, TO 
APPROVE THE PAYMENTS AND CLAIMS, EXCLUDING THE PAYMENTS AND 
CLAIMS TO THE CITY OF TROY AND THE AGENCY FOR COMMUNITY TRANSIT. 

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED: 

ALLEN P. ADOMITE  AYE 
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE 
CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE 
RONALD L. JEDDA  AYE 
J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE 

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED. 

B. Monthly Financial Report: Reviews of the monthly financial records as of September
30, 2020:

Managing Director SJ Morrison presented the monthly financial report.

TRUSTEE ADOMITE MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE SCHMIDT,
TO APPROVE OF THE MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT AS OF DATE.

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED:

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE 
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE 
CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE 
RONALD L. JEDDA  AYE 
J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE 

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED. 

C. Quarterly Investment Report

ACT Director of Accounting, Michelle Domer, presented the Quarterly Investment
Report.

TRUSTEE ADOMITE MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE SCHMIDT,
TO APPROVE OF THE QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT.

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED:

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE 
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE 
CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE 



3 

RONALD L. JEDDA AYE 
J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE 

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED. 

D. Capital Budget Review

Managing Director SJ Morrison presented the Capital Budget Review and provided
status updates on all projects in the current MCT Capital Budget.

VI. Transit Service

A. Managing Director’s Report:

Managing Director, SJ Morrison produced the report.

Fixed Route ridership increased to ninety-three thousand (93,000) boardings in
September, this is still a forty-nine percent decrease from the previous September.
Fixed Route averages three thousand eight hundred (3,800) boardings per day.

Paratransit continues to average ninety to one hundred trips per day.

The Confluence Trail is closed from McKinley Bridge to America’s Central Port for the
Terminal Railroad Bridge reconstruction.

A pre-construction trail beautification project meeting was held Monday, October 26,
with Focal Pointe Outdoor Solutions. Phase I, tree planting, is scheduled to
commence next week and end December 31. Phase II, berms, flowers, and shrub
planting are scheduled to be completed on April 1, 2021.

Morrison mentioned how the Transportation Network Companies (TNC), such as
Uber and Lyft, are legally obligated by Federal Transit Administration (FTA)
requirements regardless of the use of Federal funds or not. The most common types
of service outlined by the FTA are first mile/last mile, low demand service,
supplementing ADA Paratransit Service, provisions of new Demand Response
Service, and Non-Service Partnerships (linking passengers to TNC apps and/or
marketing).

B. Proposal to Revise Vanpool Fares

ACT Director of Marketing & Communications, Amanda Schomaker presented the
Proposal to Revise Vanpool Fares. The proposed fare chart is available online for
viewing, will be sent directly to all current vanpoolers, and a public meeting will be
held virtually on November 12. All comments will be presented to the Board at the
November meeting.

C. TRUSTEE ADOMITE MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE ECONOMY,
TO APPROVE THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION:

21-11 AUTHORIZING AN AWARD OF CONTRACT TO AAIC, INC. FOR DESIGN
SERVICES FOR ADMINISTRATION BUILDING AND SAFETY & SECURITY 
IMPROVEMENTS 

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED: 

ALLEN P. ADOMITE  AYE 
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE 



4 

CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE 
RONALD L. JEDDA  AYE 
J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE 

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED. 

D. TRUSTEE SCHMIDT MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE ECONOMY,
TO APPROVE THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION:

21-12  AUTHORIZING THE SUBMITTAL OF AN APPLICATION FOR AN ILLINOIS
TRANSPORTATION ENHANCEMENT PROGRAM GRANT FOR THE 
INSTALLATION OF A GRADE SEPARATION AT IL-111 AND MCT 
SCHOOLHOUSE TRAIL 

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED: 

ALLEN P. ADOMITE  AYE 
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE 
CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE 
RONALD L. JEDDA  AYE 
J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE 

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED. 

E. TRUSTEE ADOMITE MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE GUY, TO
APPROVE THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION:

21-13  AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION OF
THE EASTGATE PARK & RIDE FACILITY 

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED: 

ALLEN P. ADOMITE  AYE 
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE 
CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE 
RONALD L. JEDDA  AYE 
J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE 

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED. 

VII. Other Business

VIII. Executive session to discuss the acquisition or lease of real property under
(c)(5), and litigation under (c)(11) of the Open Meetings Act (5 ILCS 120/2).

TRUSTEE ADOMITE MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE GUY, TO
MOVE INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS THE ACQUISITION OR LEASE
OF REAL PROPERTY UNDER 2(C)(5), AND LITIGATION UNDER 2(C)(11) OF THE
OPEN MEETINGS ACT (5 ILCS 120/2).

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED:

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE 
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE 
CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE 
RONALD L. JEDDA AYE 
J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE 



5 

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED. 

TRUSTEE GUY MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE SCHMIDT, TO 
RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION. 

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED: 

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE 
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE 
CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE 
RONALD L. JEDDA AYE 
J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE 

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED. 

IX. ADJOURNMENT

TRUSTEE ADOMITE MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE SCHMIDT
TO ADJOURN.

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED:

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE 
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE 
CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE 
RONALD L. JEDDA AYE 
J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE 

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED. 

Meeting adjourned at 10:30 a.m. 

Respectfully submitted 

________________________________  



MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30. 2020 



MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

PAGE 

NUMBER 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 1-3

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 4-5

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 6-10

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

EXHIBIT 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

A. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B. ST A TEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

C. BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

D. RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENT AL FUNDS

11 

12 

13 

BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 14

E. ST A TEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENT AL FUNDS 15 

F. RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 16 

G. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND 17 



MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

TABLE OF CONTENTS (CONT'D) 

H. ST A TEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN

PAGE 

NUMBER 

FINANCIAL POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND 18 

I. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUND 19 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 20-33

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

SCHEDULE 

1. SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - MAJOR

GOVERNMENTAL FUND 34-35

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 36 

SUPPLEMENT ARY INFORMATION: 

SCHEDULE 

2. SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES BY FUNCTION - PROPRIETARY FUND 37



Board of Trustees 

Certified Public Accountants 

ALTON EDWARDSVILLE BELLEVILLE HIGHLAND 

JERSEYVILLE COLUMBIA CARROLLTON 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

October 19, 2020 

Madison County Mass Transit District 
Madison County, Illinois 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, the blended component unit, and each major fund of Madison County Mass 
Transit District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table 
of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
did not audit the financial statements of the Agency for Community Transit, a blended component 
unit, which statements reflect total assets constituting 19 percent of combined total assets at June 30, 
2020. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and 
our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Agency for Community Transit, is 
based solely on the report of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

AN IND(PENDENT MlMlft.Of 

IBDO 
ALLIANCE USA 

www.scheffelboyle.com 



Board of Trustees 
Madison County Mass Transit District 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such 
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements 
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the blended component unit, and each major 
fund of Madison County Mass Transit District as of June 30, 2020, and its proprietary fund type as 
of December 31, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash 
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America. 

Emphasis of Matter 

The present level of service of the District is dependent upon the District's ability to obtain 
operating assistance as described in Note 4. While resources exist to meet present obligations, 
revenues derived from services are not adequate to meet the expenses of continued service without 
such operating assistance. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementa,y Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 6 through 10 
and 34 through 36 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide 
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

- 2 -



Board of Trustees 
Madison County Mass Transit District 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements. The supplementary information 
contained in the schedule of expenses by function-proprietary fund type is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The schedule of expenses by function-proprietary fund type is the responsibility of management 
and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America by us and other auditors. In our opinion, based on our 
audit, the procedures performed as described above, and the report of other auditors and the schedule 
of expenses by function-proprietary fund type are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to 
the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
October 19, 2020, on our consideration of Madison County Mass Transit District's internal control 
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District's internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 

<5 JR. � Edwardsville, IL 

- .) -



Certified Public Accountants 

ALTON EDWARDSVILLE BELLEVILLE HIGHLAND 

JERSEYVILLE COLUMBIA CARROLLTON 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND 

OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Board of Trustees 
Madison County Mass Transit District 
Madison County, Illinois 

October 19, 2020 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the blended component unit, and each major 
fund of Madison County Mass Transit District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Madison County Mass 
Transit District's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 19, 
2020. Our report includes a reference to the other auditors who audited the financial statements of 
Agency for Community Transit, as described in our report on Madison County Mass Transit 
District's financial statements. The financial statements of Agency for Community Transit were not 
audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Madison 
County Mass Transit District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to 
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of Madison County Mass Transit District's internal control. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Madison County Mass Transit District's internal 
control. 

www.scheffelboyle.com 

AN INO{PlNO[NT M[MIU. or 

IBDO 
ALLIANCE USA 



Board of Trustees 
Madison County Mass Transit District 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and c01Tect, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that 
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit 
we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Madison County Mass Transit 
District's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial 
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

5cf/1Jrtu/ 
Edwardsville, IL 

- 5 -



MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2020 

The following discussion and analysis of the Madison County Mass Transit District's financial 
performance provides an overview of the District's financial activities for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2020, compared to the financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2019. Please 
review it in conjunction with the District's financial statements and accompanying notes. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The accompanying financial statements contain two funds, the General Fund and the Business
Type Activities Fund. Both funds are considered to be Major Funds. The General Fund, which 
is classified as a Governmental Fund, contains the financial activity of the Madison County Mass 
Transit District (the District). The Business-Type Activities Fund, which is classified as a 
Proprietary Fund, contains the financial activity of the Agency for Community Transit (the 
Agency). The Agency is a not-for-profit entity with a December 31 fiscal year end. It is a 
blended component unit of the District. Further information regarding the Agency can be found 
in their separately-issued audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019. 

Reimbursements from the District to the Agency are rep011ed in the accompanying financial 
statements as Transfers to Other Funds. Additional information concerning the combining of the 
General and Business-Type Activities funds as well as other accounting policies is contained in 
the accompanying notes to the financial statements. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

During the year ended June 30, 2020, work was completed on construction of the Quercus Grove 
Trail Extension and the Troy-O'Fallon bike trail, which became part of the Goshen Trail. Other 
purchases included fo11y-two heavy duty thirty-foot buses for fixed route service, twenty-nine 
light-duty fom1een-passenger buses for demand response service, road supervisor vehicles, and 
vans for the St. Louis Regional Rideshare Program. Additional analysis of capital project 
expenditures is included on page 8 of this report. 

The COVID-19 pandemic impacted the District's operations beginning in March 2020, and this 
pandemic is ongoing as of the date of this rep011. In response to this pandemic, the FT A awarded 
the District a Federal CARES Act grant in the amount of $12,531,431 to help offset operating 
expenses, capital projects expenses, and preventive maintenance expenses over the next several 
fiscal years. Additional information is included on Note 7 of this report, on page 32. 

Net Position: The District's net position reflects the difference between assets, what the District 
owns, and liabilities, what the District owes. During the year ended June 30, 2020, the District's 
combined net position increased $19,755,623. The majority of this increase, $18,394,809, is due 
to the increase in net fixed assets stemming from the purchases of the buses and other assets 
described above. Overall, the District continues to be in solid financial condition. 

- 6 -



MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2020 

The following table summarizes the combined net position of the District and the Agency for the 
years ended June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019: 

Condensed Combined Statement of Financial Position 

Increase 

6/30/2020 6/30/2019 (Decrease} 

Assets 

Cash and Investments $73,030,102 $73,163,171 ($133,069) 

Receivables 7,151,170 5,238,117 1,913,053 

Other Assets 2,205,811 1,904,670 301,141 

Fixed Assets, Net 71,591,425 53,202,420 18,389,005 

Total Assets $153,978,508 $133,508,378 $20,470,130 

Liabilities 

Payables $2,988,341 $2,311,260 $677,081 

Accrued Wages and Compensated Absences 3,282,396 3,275,241 7,155 

Other Liabilities 640,513 610,242 30,271 

Total Liabilities $6,911,250 $6,196,743 $714,507 

Net Position 

Investment in Fixed Assets $71,591,425 $53,202,420 $18,389,005 

Restricted for Local Match 17,841,400 19,729,777 (1,888,377) 

Unrestricted 57,634,433 54,379,438 3,254,995 

Total Net Position $147,067,258 $127,311,635 $19,755,623 

Receivables: The increase in receivables is primarily due to amounts owed to the District for the 
purchases of thirty-foot buses and reimbursement of expenses related to the COVID-19 
pandemic as of June 30, 2020. 

Fixed Assets. Net: The main reasons for the increase in net fixed assets was the purchase of a 
thirty-foot bus fixed route fleet and a fourteen-passenger bus demand response fleet. Additional 
analysis of capital projects expenditures is included on page 8 of this repo11. 

Net Position. Restricted for Local Match: The decrease in assigned fund balance is largely due 
to decreased amounts assigned for vehicle purchases when the new single year capital budget 
was approved during the year ended June 30, 2020. 

- 7 -



MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30. 2020 

Net Position. Unrestricted: The increase in unrestricted net position is mostly due to more 
revenues than expenditures in the current fiscal year. 

Investment in Fixed Assets: The District's investment in fixed assets repo1is the land, buildings, 
improvements, vehicles and equipment utilized in the District's operations. The depreciation 
assessed to these assets spreads their cost over their estimated useful lives. Additional 
information regarding the fixed assets is included in Note 5. 

The changes in net fixed assets in the General Fund during the years ended June 30, 2020 and 
June 30, 2019 are summarized as follows. 

Summary of Fixed Assets Activity - General Fund 

Increase 

6/30/2020 6/30/2019 (Decrease) 

Fixed Assets in Service, Beginning of the Year $133,407,173 $132,732,480 $674,693 

Additions and Adjustments 26,514,320 1,246,279 25,268,041 

Retirements {5, 155,0792 {571,586} {4,583,493) 

Fixed Assets in Service, End of the Year $154,766,414 $133,407,173 $21,359,241 

Accumulated .Depreciation, Beginning of the 
Year $80,236,086 $73,337,095 $6,898,991 

Additions and Adjustments 8,046,557 7,465,614 580,943 

Retirements {5,082,125} (566,6232 {4,515,502} 

Accumulated Depreciation, End of the Year $83,200,518 $80,236,086 $2,964,432 

Net Fixed Assets at the End of the Year $71,565,896 $53,171,087 $18,394,809 

Capital Projects: Many of the District's fixed assets involve projects which take longer than one 
year to complete. The revenues and expenditures associated with these projects vary each fiscal 
year depending upon the status of the project. A summary of the revenues and expenditures 
associated with the major capital projects in progress in the General Fund during the years ended 
June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019 is on the following page. 

- 8 -



MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2020 

Capital Project Activity - General Fund 

Revenues Expenditures 

Transit Centers and Park and Ride 

Facilities 

Equipment 

Vehicles 

Facility Improvements 

Bikeways 

Totals 

6/30/20 

$0 

239,339 

18,419,334 

0 

668,798 

$19,327,471 

6/30/19 

$0 

122,709 

148,217 

0 

231,908 

$502,834 

6/30/20 6/30/19 

$587,053 

9,900 

24,168,572 

529,610 

1,219,185 

$26,514,320 

$51,962 

104,320 

601,546 

48,721 

439,729 

$1,246,278 

Statement of Activities/Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance: 
The following table summarizes the District's Statement of Activities for the General Fund for 
the year ended June 30, 2020: 

Condensed Statement of Activities/Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - General Fund 

6/30/20 6/30/19 Change 

Revenues: 

Transit Operating Revenues $826,678 $1,037,082 ($210,404) 

Capital Grant Revenues 19,327,471 502,834 18,824,637 

Operating Grants 17,811,217 17,477,273 333,944 

Sales Tax 13,589,837 12,972,382 617,455 

Interest Income 1,370,762 1,226,840 143,922 

Other Revenues 471,674 49,775 421,899 

Total Revenues $53,397,639 $33,266,186 $20,131,453 

Expenditures: 

Transit Services $3,304,884 $3,639,214 ($334,330) 

Rideshare Program 346,618 384,349 (37,731) 

Bikeways 1,392,175 439,729 952,446 

Transit Centers and Equipment 25,122,145 806,549 24,315,596 

Management and General 650,411 668,016 {17,605} 

Total Expenditures $30,816,233 $5,937,857 $24,878,376 

Transfers to Other Funds $23,304,477 $22,451,165 $853,312 

Net Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures ($723,071) $4,877,164 {$5,600,235) 

- 9 -



MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2020 

These Statements measure the District's performance during the year. Significant :fluctuations in 
the District's Statements for the year ended June 30, 2020 include the following: 

• General Fund Revenues increased $20,131,453
• General Fund Expenditures increased $24,878,376

These changes are primarily due to the purchases of the thirty-foot bus fixed route fleet and the 
fourteen-passenger bus demand response fleet, as well as other capital projects activity during 
the year ending June 30, 2020. 

General Fund Budget: The District's General Fund budget has two components, the Operating 
Budget and the Capital Budget. The Operating Budget measures the anticipated revenues and 
expenditures needed to perform the daily business operations of the District. The Capital Budget 
is used to account for the capital projects that generate the fixed assets of the District. In prior 
fiscal years, the District adopted multi-year capital budgets. However, for the year ending June 
30, 2020, the District adopted a five-year capital plan, and a single year Capital Budget. The 
Operating and Capital budgets were modified during the year ending June 30, 2020, adding new 
projects and adjusting the anticipated revenues and costs of cun-ent projects. Resolutions were 
approved by the District's Board as additional projects were developed and related grant 
revenues were determined to be available. 

The detailed comparison of the District's budgeted and actual expenditures is found with 
Schedule 1 on pages 34 through 36 of the accompanying financial statements. 

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District's finances for those 
with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information 
provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the 
Office of the Accounting Director, One Transit Way, P.O. Box 7500, Granite City, Illinois 
62040-7500. 

- 10 -



EXHIBIT "A" 

MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

ST A TEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

BUSINESS-TYPE 

ACTIVITIES 

AGENCY FOR 

GOVERNMENT AL COMMUNITY 

ACTIVITIES TRANSIT 

JUNE 30. 2020 DECEMBER 3I.2019 TOTAL 

ASSETS 

Cash $ 10,443 $ 4,536,95 I $ 4,547,394 

Investments 46,982,708 21,500,000 68,482,708 

Accounts Receivable, Net 101,409 165,118 266,527 

Interest Receivable 69,960 69,960 

Due from Governmental Agencies 4,816,688 4,816,688 

Transfers Due from Other Funds 1,957,427 1,957,427 

Inventory 949,670 949,670 

Prepaid Expenses 869,827 186,755 1,056,582 

Other Receivable 40,568 40,568 

Other Assets 199.559 199,559 

Fixed Assets, Net of Accumulated 

Depreciation 71,565,896 25,529 71,591,425 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 125,407,169 $ 28,571,339 $ 153,978,508 

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 

LIABILITIES: 

Accounts Payable $ 836.859 $ 128,314 $ 965,173 

Contracts Payable - Retainage 27,309 27,309 

Transfers Due to Other Funds 1,995,859 1,995,859 

Accrued Wages and Compensated 

Absences 3,282,396 3,282,396 

Other Liabilities 640,513 640,513 

Total Liabilities $ 2,860,027 $ 4,051,223 $ 6,911,250 

NET POSITION: 

Investment in Fixed Assets $ 71,565,896 $ 25,529 $ 71,591,425 

Restricted For: 

Local Match 17,841,400 17,841,400 

Unrestricted 33,139,846 24,494,587 57,634,433 

Total Net Position $ 122,547,142 $ 24,520,116 $ 147,067,258 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 

NET POSITION $ 125,407,169 $ 28,571,339 $ 153,978,508 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

-11-



FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS 
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT: 

Governmental Activities: 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Transportation 

Business-Type Activities: 
For the Ye;u- Ended December 31, 2019 

Transportation 

Total Primary Government 

General Revenues and Transfers: 
Sales Tax 
Miscellaneous 
Transfers 

Total General Revenues and Transfers 
Change in Net Position 

Net Position, Beginning of Y car 
Net Position, End of Year 

EXPENSES 

$ 12,348,470 

$ 23,700,808 

$ 36,049,278 

MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

PROGRAM REVENUES 
CHARGES FOR CAPITAL 

$ 

$ 

$ 

SERVICES GRANTS 

826,678 $ 19,327,471 

l,5l l,723 $ 

2,338,401 $ 19,327,471 

OPERATING 
GRANTS 

$ 17 ,81 1,217 

$ 

$ 17,811,217 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the financial statements. 

-12-

EXHl!3IT "B" 

NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE AND CHANGES IN 
NET POSITION 

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE 

ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL 

$ 25,6 I 6,896 $ $ 25,616,896 

$ $ (22,189,085) $ (22,189,085) 

$ 25,616,896 $ (22,189,085) $ 3,427,811 

$ 13,589,837 $ $ 13,589,837 
1,769,482 686,371 2,455,853 

(23,304,477) 23,586,599 282,122 
$ (7 .945, I 58} $ 24,272,970 $ 16,327,812 
$ 17,671,738 $ 2,083,885 $ 19,755,623 

104,875,404 22,436,231 127,311,635 
$ 122,547,142 $ 24,520,116 $ 147,067,258 



ASSETS: 

Cash 

Investments 

Accounts Receivable, Net 

Interest Receivable 

MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENT AL FUNDS 

JUNE 30. 2020 

Due from Governmental Agencies 

Inventory 

Prepaid Expenses 

Other Receivable 

TOT AL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES: 

LIABILITIES: 

Accounts Payable 

Contracts Payable - Retainage 

Transfers Due to Other Funds 

Total Liabilities 

FUND BALANCES: 

Nonspendable 

Inventory 

Prepaid Expense 

Assigned 

Local Match 

Unassigned 

Total Fund Balances 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 
FUND BALANCES 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

-13-

EXHrBIT "C" 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

GENERAL 

FUND 

10,443 

46,982,708 

101,409 

69,960 

4,816,688 

949,670 

869,827 

40,568 

53,841,273 

836,859 

27,309 

1,995,859 

2,860,027 

949,670 

869,827 

17,841,400 

31,320,349 

50,981,246 

53,841,273 



MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT D!STRICT 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 

TO THE ST A TEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
JUNE 30. 2020 

Total Fund Balances for Governmental Funds 

Total net position reported for governmental activities in the statement of net 

position is different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and 

therefore are not reported in the funds. Those assets consist of: 

Land $ 9,888,663 

Bikeways, buildings and improvements, 
net of $47,841,422 accumulated depreciation 

Vehicles, net of$29,769,723 accumulated depreciation 
Equipment, net of$5,589,373 accumulated depreciation 

Total Net Position of Governmental Activities 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

-14-

30,465,903 
30,656,937 

554,393 

EXHIBrT "D" 

$ 50,981,246 

71,565,896 

$ 122,547,142 



MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

ST A TEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

REVENUES: 

Sales Tax 

Interest 

Illinois Department of Transportation (IDOT) Operating Assistance 

lllinois Department of Transportation (IDOT) Local Sales Tax Reform 

Rideshare Program 

Lease and Rental Income 

Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5307 

Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5339 

Federal CARES Act 

Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (CMAQ) 
Fares 

Metro East Park and Recreation District (MEPRD) 

Intergovernmental Agreements 

Other Revenues 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 

Transit Services (Note I .A.) 
Rideshare Program (Note I .A.) 

Professional and Other Services 

Trustee Expense 

District Office 

Facilities Maintenance 

Transit Centers and Park and Ride Facilities 

Equipment 

Vehicles 

Facility Improvements 

Bikeways 

Total Expenditures 

REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING USES: 

Transfers to Other Funds (Note 1.A.) 

REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES 

AND OTHER FINANCING USES 

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

-15-

EXHIBIT "E" 

GENERAL 

$ 10,183,141 

1,370,762 

16,380,459 

3,406,696 

456,092 

24,752 

11,994,567 

3,600,000 

875,913 

3,153,449 

826,678 

633,458 
44,750 

446,922 

$ 53,397,639 

$ 3,192,719 

346,618 

214,058 

13,955 

422,398 

112,165 

414,063 

363,359 

24,100,609 

244,114 

1,392,175 

$ 30,816,233 

$ 22,581,406 

23,304,477 

$ (723,071) 

51,704,317 

$ 50,981,246 



MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENT AL FUND 
TO THE ST A TEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

Net Change in Fund Balance - Total Governmental Fund 
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are 

different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while 
governmental activities report depreciation expense to allocate those 
expenditures over the life of the assets. This is the amount by which capital 
outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period. 

Governmental funds only report the disposal of assets to the extent proceeds 
are received from the sale. In the Statement of Activities, a gain or loss 
is reported for each disposal. This is the amount of the basis in the fixed assets disposed. 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

-16-

$ 

$ 

EXHIBIT "F" 

(723,07I) 

18,467,763 

(72,954) 

17,671,738 



MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND 

AGENCY FOR COMMUNITY TRANSIT 
DECEMBER 31, 2019 

Cash 
Investments 
Accounts Receivable, Net 
Due from Other Funds 
Prepaid Insurance 
Prepaid Expenses 
Fixed Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 
Other Assets 

TOT AL ASSETS 

Accounts Payable 
Accrued Wages and Compensated Absences 
Other Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Investment in Fixed Assets 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Assets (Exhibit "H") 

ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

-17-

EXHIBIT "G" 

TRANSPORTATION 

$ 4,536,951 
21,500,000 

165,118 
1,957,427 

2,357 
184,398 
25,529 

199,559 

$ 28,571,339 

$ 128,314 
3,282,396 

640,513 

$ 4,051,223 

$ 25,529 
24,494,587 

$ 24,520, I 16 

$ 28,571,339 



MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES AND 

CHANGES IN FINANCIAL POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND 
AGENCY FOR COMMUNITY TRANSIT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Charges for Services 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Transpo1tation Program (Schedule "2") 
Management and General Expense (Schedule "2") 

Total Operating Expenses 

OPERA TING LOSS 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES 
Interest Income 
Maintenance Income 
Radio Tower Repeater Fees 
Miscellaneous Income 
Gain on Sale of Assets 

Total Non-Operating Revenues 

LOSS BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS 
FROM OTHER FUNDS 

TOT AL OPERA TING TRANSFERS FROM 
OTHER FUNDS 

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS 

TOT AL NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 

TOT AL NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

-18-

EXHIBlT "H" 

TRANSPORTATION 

$ 1,511,723 

$ 22,603,386 
I,097,422 

$ 23,700,808 

$ (22,189,085) 

$ 540,777 
51,106 
23,832 
69,684 

972 
$ 686,371 

$ (21,502,714) 

23,586,599 

$ 2,083,885 

22,436,231 

$ 24,520,116 



MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUND 

AGENCY FOR COMMUNITY TRANSIT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Cash Received from Customers 
Cash Paid to Employees and Suppliers 
Interest Received 

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Cash Purchase of Fixed Assets 
Purchase of Investments 
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets 

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Cash Received From Other Funds 

NET INCREASE IN CASH 

CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH, END OF YEAR 

RECONCILIATION OF LOSS BEFORE OPERA TING TRANSFERS TO 
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

LOSS BEFORE OPERA TING TRANSFERS 

ADJUSTMENTS: 
Depreciation 
(Gain)/Loss on Sale/Disposal of Property 

CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES: 
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN: 

Accounts Receivable, Net 
Prepaid Insurance 
Prepaid Expenses 
Other Assets 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN: 
Accounts Payable 
Accrued Wages and Compensated Absences 
Other Liabilities 

NET CASH USED BY OPERA TING ACTIVITIES 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

-19-

EXHIBIT "I" 

$ 1,600,438 
(23,671,318) 

540,777 
$ (21,530,103) 

$ (8,6 I I) 
(1,520,000) 

972 
$ (1,527,639) 

$ 23,730,089 

$ 672,347 

3,864,604 

$ 4,536,951 

$ (21,502,714) 

I4,415 
(972) 

(55,907) 
(123) 

18,404 
(2,649) 

(37,983) 
7,155 

30,271 

$ (21,530,103) 



NOTE 1. 

MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2020 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Madison County Mass Transit District was established in 1980 under the 
provision of the local Mass Transit District Act, as amended. The District is to provide 
transportation to the elderly and disabled, and fixed route transportation to the general 
public. 

The accounting policies of the District conform to accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governmental units. The 
accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial 
reporting principles is the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The 
following is a summary of the significant accounting policies: 

A. Reporting Entity

The following criteria have been developed to determine whether related 
organizations should be included within the financial reporting entity. The 
criteria, as set forth in GASB No. 14, "The Financial Reporting Entity", as 
amended by GASB No. 39 "Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are 
Component Units" is financial accountability. Financial accountability is defined 
as appointment of a voting majority of a component unit's board and either the 
ability to impose its will by a primary government or the possibility that a 
component unit will provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden 
on a primary government. Based on this criteria, the Agency for Community 
Transit, a not-for-profit entity with a December 31 fiscal year end, qualifies as a 
component unit. 

The financial statements of the Agency for Community Transit (Agency) for year 
ended December 31, 2019, are reported as a blended component unit, and are 
presented as a proprietary fund type. The Agency issues separately audited 
financial statements and they can be obtained from the Agency's office. The 
following is a brief description of activities and relationship to the District: 

The District contracts with the Agency to provide transportation 
services to the Madison County area and provide administrative 
services to the District. The Agency provides services 
exclusively for the District. The Agency's Board of Directors are 
appointed by the District's Board of Directors. 

All transactions and balances between the District and the Agency have been 
reclassified as transfers to or from other funds. These transfer accounts will not 
balance at June 30, 2020, due to the different reporting periods of the District and 
the Agency. In addition, the operating budget of the District does not reflect the 
reclassification of the transactions and balances. 

- 20 -



NOTE 1. 

MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

JUNE 30, 2020 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 

B. Fund Accounting

The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of funds. The operation of
the funds are accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts
which comprise its assets, liabilities, fund balances, revenue, and expenditures.

General Fund - The General Fund is the operating fund of the District. It
accounts for all financial resources that are not required to be accounted for in
another fund.

Proprietary Fund - The Proprietary Fund reports the activity of the component
unit. The fund's objective is the determination of change in net assets and cash
flows.

C. Basis of Accounting

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information
about the District, the primary government, as a whole. These statements
distinguish between activities that are governmental and those that are considered
business-type activities.

The government-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. This is the same
approach used in the preparation of the proprietary fund financial statements but
differs from the manner in which governmental fund financial statements are
prepared. Therefore, governmental fund financial statements include a
reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between
the government-wide statements and the statements for governmental funds.

The government-wide statement of activities presents a comparison between
expenses and program revenues for each segment of the business-type activities
of the District and for each governmental activity. Program revenues include
charges paid by the recipients of the services offered by the programs and grants
and contributions that are restricted to meeting operational or capital
requirements of a particular program. Revenues which are not classified as
program revenues are presented as general revenues. The comparison of
program revenues and expenses identifies the extent to which each program or
business segment is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the
District.

- 21 -



NOTE 1. 

MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

JUNE 30, 2020 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 

Fund Financial Statements 

Fund financial statements report detailed information about the District. The 

focus of governmental and proprietary fund financial statements is on major 
funds rather than reporting funds by type. All funds are considered major. 

Governmental Funds 

All governmental funds are accounted for using modified accrual basis of 
accounting and the current financial resources measurement focus. Under this 

basis revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they become 
measurable and available. Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period 
in which the fund liability is incurred, if measurable. 

Revenue Recognition 

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used in the Governmental Fund 
Type. Revenues are recognized when they become "measurable and available." 
Measurable means the amount can be determined. Available means collectable 
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay current liabilities. 

Expenditure Recognition 

The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net 

financial resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Most expenditures are 
measurable and are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. 
However, principal and interest on long-term debt, which has not matured, are 
recognized when paid. Allocations of costs, such as depreciation and 
amortization, are not recognized in the governmental funds. 

Proprietary Funds 

All proprietary funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. 

The economic resource focus determines costs as a means of maintaining capital 
investment and management control. Their revenues are recognized when they 

are earned and their expenses are recognized when they are incun-ed. Allocations 
of costs, such as depreciation, are recorded in proprietary funds. 

- 22 -



NOTE 1. 

MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

JUNE 30, 2020 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 

D. Investments

Investments are carried at cost, which approximates market.

E. Inventory

Inventory consists of bus parts, fuel and lubricants and is valued at cost. Cost is
determined by the first-in, first-out method.

F. Fixed Assets and Depreciation

The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the fixed assets associated

with a fund are determined by its measurement focus. General fixed assets are
long-lived assets of the District as a whole with a cost of $5,000 or greater.
When purchased, such assets are recorded as expenditures in the governmental
fund. The valuation basis for general fixed assets is historical cost. Historical
cost is the amount paid by the District for the asset. The District pays only the
local portion of some bikeway projects. The local portion is the historical cost.
Where historical cost is not available, estimated historical cost is based on
replacement cost. Donated fixed assets are reported at their fair market value as
of the date received.

Fixed assets in the proprietary fund are capitalized in the fund in which they are
utilized. The valuation basis for proprietary fund fixed assets are the same as
those used for the general fixed assets.

Depreciation of fixed assets is computed and recorded by the straight-line
method. Estimated useful lives of the various classes of depreciable fixed assets
are as follows:

Buildings and Improvements 

Vehicles 
Equipment 

- 23 -

15 to 25 years 

4 to 12 years 

3 to 10 years 



NOTE I. 

MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

JUNE 30, 2020 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 

G. Equity Classifications

Government-Wide Statements

Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components:

a. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt -Amount of capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation, less outstanding balances of any bonds,
notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets.

b. Restricted-Amount of net position that is subject to restrictions that are
imposed by 1) external groups, such as creditors, granters, contributors or
laws and regulations of other governments or 2) law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

c. Unrestricted - Net position that is neither classified as restricted nor as
invested in capital assets, net of related debt.

Fund Statements 

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. In accordance with 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 54 - Fund Balance 
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, the District classifies 
governmental fund balance as follows: 

a. Nonspendable - Includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent
either because they are not in spendable form or because legal or
contractual requirements require them to be maintained intact.

b. Restricted -Consists of fund balances with constraints placed on their
use either by 1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors,
or laws or regulations of other governments or, 2) law through
constitutional provisions of enabling legislation. As of June 30, 2020, the
District does not have restricted funds.

- 24 -



NOTE 1. 

MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS (CONT'D) 

JUNE 30, 2020 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 

c. Committed - Includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for
specific purposes that are internally imposed by the government through
formal action of the highest level of decision-making authority. Fund
balance amounts are committed through a f01mal resolution of the
District board. This formal action must occur prior to the end of the
fiscal year, but the amount of the commitment, which will be subject to
the constraints, may be determined in the subsequent fiscal year. Any
changes to the constraints imposed require the same fo1mal action of the
District board that originally created the commitment. As of June 30,
2020, the District does not have committed funds.

d. Assigned- Includes spendable fund balance amounts that are intended to
be used for specific purposes that are not considered restricted or
committed. Fund balance may be assigned through the following: 1) The
District board may take action to assign amounts for a specific purpose
or, 2) all remaining positive spendable amounts in governmental funds,
other than the general fund, that are neither restricted nor committed.
Assignments may take place after the end of the fiscal year.

e. Unassigned - Includes residual positive fund balance within the general
fund which has not been classified within the other above-mentioned
categories. Unassigned fund balance may also include negative balances
for any governmental fund if expenditures exceed amounts restricted,
committed or assigned for those specific purposes.

Unless specifically identified, expenditures act to reduce restricted balances first, 
then committed balances, next assigned balances, and finally to reduce 
unassigned balances. Expenditures for a specifically identified purpose will act 
to reduce the specific classification of fund balance that is identified. 

The District has a formal minimum fund balance policy to maintain cash and 
investment balances at a level sufficient to pay for not less than nine months of 
operating expenditures and not less than 5% of the audited Net Fixed Assets at 
the end of the prior fiscal year. These minimum balances are included in 
unassigned fund balance. 

The District also has a formal minimum fund balance policy to maintain cash and 
investments at a level sufficient to pay for not less than twelve months of the 
capital reserve amount. This minimum fund balance is included in assigned fund 
balance. 

- 25 -



NOTE 1. 

NOTE 2. 

MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS (CONT'D) 

JUNE 30, 2020 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 

H. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

I. Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities of the
Proprietary Fund have been summarized on a functional basis in the schedule of
functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services benefited.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

Cash consists of cash on hand and cash in checking accounts. Investments consist of 
cash in high yield money market accounts, certificates of deposit, and a pooled 
investment account. 

CARRYING BANK 

AMOUNT BALANCE 

Cash: 

General Fund $ 10,443 $ 2,468,251 

Proprietary Fund 4,536,951 4,716,784 

Total $ 4,547,394 $ 7,185,035 

Non-Pooled Investments: 

General Fund $ 41,214,057 $ 41,214,057 

Proprietary Fund 21,500,000 21,500,000 

Pooled Investments: 

General Fund 5,768,651 5,768,651 

Total $ 68,482
2
708 $ 68,482,708 

- 26 -



NOTE 2. 

MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS (CONT'D) 

JUNE 30. 2020 

CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONT'D) 

The District is authorized to invest in any type of security allowed for in Illinois 
statutes regarding the investment of public funds. 

A. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely 
affect the fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an 
investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market 
interest rates. One of the ways that the District manages its exposure to interest 
rate risk is by purchasing shorter term investments and by timing cash flows from 

· maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to
maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity
needed for operations.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District's investments to 
market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the 
distribution of the District's investments by maturity. 

State Investment Pool 
Certificates of Deposit 
Money Market Accounts 

Total 

B. Credit Risk

$ 

$ 

Remaining Maturity 

12 months 
Total or less 
5,768,651 $ 5,768,651 

62,632,000 26,185,000 
82,057 82,057 

68,482,708 $ 32,035,708 

1-5 vears

$ 
36,447,000 

$ 36,447,000 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its 
obligation to the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of 
a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. The District 
invests in a state investment pool. The investment pool earned Standard and 
Poor' s highest rating of AAAm. 

C. Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of failure of a 
depository financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its 
deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the 
possession of an outside party. 

- 27 -



NOTE 2. 

NOTE 3. 

MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS (CONT'D) 

JUNE 30. 2020 

CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONT'D) 

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure 
of the counterparty to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the 
value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of 
another party. The District's deposit policy states that all funds on deposit in 
excess of federal depository insurance must be secured by collateral held at an 
independent third party in the name of the District. As of June 30, 2020, the 
District's General Fund cash and non-pool investments are $41,224,500. All of 
the General Fund's cash and non-pooled investments and the Proprietary Fund's 
cash balance were fully insured and collateralized. 

The District's investment in the state investment pool is fully collateralized. The 
District maintains a separate investment account representing a prop011ionate 
share of the pool assets and its respective collateral; therefore no collateral is 
identified with each individual participant's account. The balance in the 
District's state investment pool as of June 30, 2020 was $5,768,651. 

DUE FROM GOVERNMENT AL AGENCIES 

The amount due from governmental agencies of $4,816,688 represents sales tax 
collections from the Illinois Department of Revenue (IDOR), sales tax and grant 
payments from the Illinois Department of Transportation (IDOT), grant payments from 
the Missouri Department of Transportation (MoDOT), the Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA), and the Metro East Park and Recreation District (MEPRD). 

The following details the amount due from governmental agencies: 

IDOR: Sales Tax $ 2,548,138 

IDOT: Operating Assistance $ (1,284,885) 
Commuter Initiative 40,802 
Rideshare Program 42,307 

(1,201,776) 

MoDOT: Rideshare Program 205,010 

FTA: Capital Grants 3, I 06,273 

MEPRD: Capital Grants 159,043 
$ 4,816,688 

- 28 -



NOTE 4. 

MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

JUNE 30. 2020 

ST A TE AND FEDERAL PROGRAMS 

Operating Assistance: 

During 1989, legislation passed which allowed state sales tax monies to go to the 
District for reimbursement of eligible operating expenditures in providing 
transportation services. 

An annual contract is signed with the Illinois Department of Transp01iation (IDOT) 
which states the requirements necessary to receive such funds. Reimbursements 
requested for eligible expenditures incurred during the year ended June 30, 2020, were 
$16,380,459. 

Rideshare Program: 

The District has agreements with the Illinois Department of Transportation (IDOT) and 
the Missouri Department of Transportation (MoDOT) for the purpose of increasing 
vehicle occupancy and decreasing vehicle miles traveled in the St. Louis Metropolitan 
Region. This program is funded by Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ). 
The District has entered into agreements for reimbursement of 100% of the eligible 
expenses incurred during the year. 

The amount requested for reimbursement under the agreements for the year ended June 
30, 2020, was $456,092. 

Bikeway Projects: 

The District has agreements with the Metro East Park and Recreation District 
(MEPRD) to reimburse costs associated with a variety of bikeways. The amount 
reimbursed under these agreements for the year ended June 30, 2020 was 3,153,449 . 

Federal and State Grants: 

The District received monies from the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) and 
Illinois Department of Transportation (IDOT) through various grants. The FT A and 
IDOT grants were entered into for the construction of transit facilities and purchases of 
vehicles, equipment, COVID-19 response supplies, and other items. The District is 
reimbursed for 80% - 100% of the original grant amount from FT A or IDOT, as a pass
through from FT A, with the remaining amount being reimbursed by IDOT or funded 
by the District. The amount requested from FT A and IDOT for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2020 was $19,532,328 and $91,601, respectively. The following details the 
funds requested to the District by FTA for the year ended June 30, 2020: 

Section 5307 

Section 5339 

CMAQ 

Federal CARES Act 

- 29 -

$ 11,994,567 

3,600,000 

3,061,848 

875,913 
$ 19,532,328 



NOTE 5. 

MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

JUNE 30, 2020 

FIXED ASSETS 

A summary of the Fixed Assets for the governmental activities is as follows: 

BALANCE BALANCE 

JUNE 30, 2019 ADDITIONS RETIREMENTS JUNE 30. 2020 

Fixed Assets, not being depreciated: 

Land $ 9,572,617 $ 316,046 $ $ 9,888,663 
Subtotal $ 9,572,617 $ 3 I 6,046 $ $ 9,888,663 

Fixed Assets, being depreciated: 
Buildings 
and Improvements $ 76,287,523 $ 2,019,802 $ $ 78,307,325 

Vehicles 41,135,510 24,168,572 4,877,422 60,426,660 
Equipment 6,411,523 9,900 277,657 6,143,766 

Subtotal $ 123,834,556 $ 26,198,274 $ 5,155,079 $144,877,751 

Accumulated Depreciation: 
Buildings and 

Improvements $ 44,420,862 $ 3,420,560 $ $ 47,841,422 
Vehicles 30,362,058 4,212,133 4,804,468 29,769,723 
Equipment 5,453,166 413,864 277,657 5,589,373 

Subtotal $ 80,236,086 $ 8,046,557 $ 5,082,125 $ 83,200,518 

Net Fixed Assets $ 53, l 7L087 $ 18,467.763 $ 72 954 $ 71.565,896 

Depreciation in the amount of $8,046,557 was ch�rged to the Transportation 
Governmental Activity. 

A summary of Fixed Assets for the business-type activities is as follows: 

Transit and Service Vehicles $ 115,429 
Leasehold Improvements 5,779 
Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment 571,410 

$ 692,618 
Less, Accumulated Depreciation (667,089) 

Net Fixed Assets $ 25,529 

Depreciation in the amount of $14,415 was charged to the Transportation Business
Type Activity. 

- 30 -



NOTE 6. 

NOTE 7. 

MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

JUNE 30, 2020 

RETIREMENT PLAN 

The Agency contributes to three Retirement Plans for the benefit of employees. 

The Agency administers a defe1Ted compensation plan under Section 403 (b) of the 
Internal Revenue Code. The plan is open to all non-union employees. Participant 
deferrals between 2.5% and 5% of income are matched 2 for 1 by the Agency if 
eligibility requirements are met. The Agency contributed $496,834 and $470,801 to the 
plan for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 

Agency union employees are able to participate in a union sponsored defined 
contribution plan under Section 401 (k) of the Internal Revenue Code. The plan is open 
to all union employees. Participant deferrals between 1 % and 5% of wages are 
matched 1 for 1 by the Agency if eligibility requirements are met. The Agency 
contributed $191,365 and $180,027 to the plan for the years ended December 31, 2019 
and 2018, respectively. 

In 2006, the Agency began making contributions to a 457(f) deferred compensation 
arrangement. Funds are retained in a separate bank account until the benefits are 
vested and the monies are withdrawn. The balance in the account, including interest, is 
$199,559 and $196,910 as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. This amount 
is also being recorded as a liability in the Agency's statement of financial position. 

RISK MANAGEMENT/CONTINGENCIES 

The District is exposed to various risks ofloss related to limited torts; theft of, damage 
to and destruction of assets; errors and omissions for which the District carries 
commercial insurance. There have been no significant reductions in coverage from the 
prior year and settlements have not exceeded coverage in the past three fiscal years. 

The District, at times, is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcomes of 
these lawsuits are not presently determinable, in the opinion of the District's 
management the resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on 
the financial condition of the District. 

- 31 -



NOTE 7. 

NOTE 8. 

NOTE 9. 

MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

JUNE 30. 2020 

RISK MANAGEMENT/CONTINGENCIES (CONT'D) 

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of 
coronavirus (COVID-19) a pandemic. The resulting restrictions on travel and 
quarantines imposed have had a negative impact on the U.S. economy and business 
activity globally. The full impact of the COVID-19 outbreak continues to evolve as of 
the date of this report. As such, it is uncertain as to the full magnitude that the 
pandemic will have on the District's financial condition and future results of 
operations. Management is actively monitoring the impact of the global situation on its 
financial condition, operations, and workforce. Given the daily evolution of the 
COVID-19 outbreak and the global responses to curb its spread, the District is not able 
to estimate the effects of the COVID-19 outbreak on its results of operations or 
financial condition for fiscal year 2021. On April 2, 2020, the FT A announced funding 
to help the nation's public transportation systems respond to COVID-19 with funding 
provided through the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act, 
signed on March 27, 2020. The total CARES Act apportionment awarded to the 
District was $12,531,431. The funding is provided at 100 percent federal share, with 
no local match required, and the grant funds are available to use to offset eligible 
operating and capital activities until expended. 

SELF-INSURANCE 

The Agency has established a limited self-insurance program for the purpose of paying 
up to $50,000 per general liability claim. Any claim in excess of the $50,000 is 
covered by a supplemental insurance plan. The Agency has incurred claims (net of 
recoveries) of $182,440 and $127,723 under this program for the years ended 
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. A self-insurance reserve has been 
established for claims inctmed but not paid of $265,746 and $243,077 for the years 
ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 

The Agency is required under their limited self-insurance program to fund a separate 
checking account designated to pay claims. The balance in this account was $41,911 
and $38,894 for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 

OPERATING LEASE 

The District entered into a three-year operating lease during fiscal year ended June 30, 
20 l 7 for the lease of three vehicles for the Rideshare program. The lease expired in 
March 2020 with a one year extension through March 2021, with the same terms. The 
lease agreements require monthly payments of $992. The remaining minimum future 
lease payments under the lease agreement, for fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, is 
$8,928. The amount of expenditures recognized under these lease agreements for the 
year ended June 30, 2020, was $11,906. 

- 32 -



MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D) 

J
U

NE 30, 2020 

NOTE 10. NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES 

Local Match 

The District passed various resolutions authorizing the submittal of a Transportation 
Improvement Program. Funding assistance is available through various federal 
programs which require matching funds for the projects to be submitted. The 
resolutions have assigned $17,841,400 of the Fund Balance for these matching funds. 

NOTE 11. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The effect of subsequent events on the financial statements has been evaluated through 
October 19, 2020 which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued. 

- 33 -



SCHEDULE "I" - PAGE I 

MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 

GENERAL FUND 

BUDGET AMOUNTS 

ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL AMOUNTS 

BUDGET BUDGET BUDGETARY BASIS 

REVENUES: 

Sales Tax $ 9,300,000 $ 9,300,000 $ 10,183,141 

Interest 750,000 750,000 1,370,762 

Illinois Department of Transportation (!DOT) Operating Assistance 17,260,000 17,260,000 16,380,459 

Illinois Department of Transportation (!DOT) Local Sales Tax Reform 2,600,000 2,600,000 3,406,696 

Rideshare Program 650,000 650,000 456,092 

Lease and Rental Income 24,752 

Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5307 19,462,600 19,462,600 11,994,567 

Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5339 3,600,000 3,600,000 3,600,000 

Federal CARES Act Funding 610,000 875,913 

Illinois Department of Transportation (!DOT) 240,000 240,000 

Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (CMAQ) 2,168,000 2,168,000 3,153,449 

Fares 1,032,000 1,032,000 826,678 

Metro East Park and Recreation District (MEPRD) 2,050,000 2,050,000 633,458 

Illinois Depa11ment of Natural Resources (IDNR) 576,000 576,000 

Intergovernmental Agreements 44,750 

Other Revenues 16,000 16,000 446,922 

Total Revenues $ 59,704,600 $ 60,314,600 $ 53,397,639 

THIS SCHEDULE CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE 

SEE ACCOMPANYING INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

- 34 -



SCHEDULE "I" - PAGE 2 

MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

EXPENDITURES: 
Transit Services (Note I .A.) $ 

Rideshare Program (Note I .A.) 
Professional and Other Services 
Administrative Contract (Note l .A.) 
Trustee Expense 
District Office 
Facilities Maintenance 

Transit Centers and Park and Ride Facilities 

Equipment 

Vehicles 

Facility Improvements 

Bikeways 
Miscellaneous 

Total Expenditures $ 

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES $ 

OTHER FINANCING USES: 
Transfers to Other Funds (Note l .A.) 

REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES 
AND OTHER FINANCING USES 

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 

GENERAL FUND 
BUDGET AMOUNTS 

ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL AMOUNTS 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGETARY BASIS 

26,000,000 $ 26,000,000 $ 3,192,719 
750,000 750,000 346,618 
265,000 275,000 214,058 
500,000 500,000 
30,000 30,000 13,955 

515,000 515,000 422,398 
825,000 825,000 112,165 

4,450,000 4,450,000 414,063 

1,418,000 1,503,000 363,359 

25,842,000 25,842,000 24,100,609 

4,058,000 4,058,000 244,114 

7,970,000 7,970,000 1,392,175 
3,100,000 3,090,000 

75,723,000 $ 75,808,000 $ 30,816,233 

(16,018,400) $ (15,493,400) $ 22,581,406 

23,304,477 

$ (723,071) 

51,704,317 

$ 50,981,246 

SEE ACCOMPANYING INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

- 35 -



MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AW ARDS 

JUNE 30, 2020 

NOTE 1 - BUDGET AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING 

The fiscal year 2020 operating and capital budgets were approved by the District Board 
of Trustees at the September 26, 2019 board meeting. 

The Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances-Budget and 
Actual - Major Governmental Fund presents a comparison of budgetary data to actual 
results. 

- 36 -



SCHEDULE "2" 

MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES BY FUNCTION - PROPRIETARY FUND 

AGENCY FOR COMMUNITY TRANSIT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31.2019 

PROGRAM SUPPORTING 

SERVICES SERVICES 

MANAGEMENT 

TRANSPORTATION &GENERAL TOTAL 
TRANSPORTATION EXPENSES: 

Gas, Oil and Lubricants $ 151,214 $ 3,511 $ 154,725 
Purchased Transportation 153 153 

Vehicle Insurance Payments and Recoveries 198,803 198,803 
Licenses and Permits 11,863 103 11,966 

Vehicle Maintenance 1,381,911 2,352 1,384,263 
Rideshare 759,837 759,837 

Total Transpo1tation Expenses $ 2,503,781 $ 5,966 $ 2,509,747 

SALARIES AND RELATED EXPENSES: 

Salaries $ 14,184,272 $ 392,706 $ 14,576,978 

Employee Benefits 3,658,857 107,609 3,766,466 

Payroll Taxes 1,067,033 33,060 1,100,093 

Personnel 69,231 7,396 76,627 

Total Salaries and Related Expenses $ 18,979,393 $ 540,771 $ 19,520,164 

OTHER EXPENSES: 

Advertising $ 66,984 $ $ 66,984 

Conferences, Meetings and Dues 18,442 12,143 30,585 

Depreciation 5,193 9,222 14,415 

Miscellaneous 21,765 6,928 28,693 

Facilities, Office and Insurance 867,330 312,319 1,179,649 

Professional, Consultant and Other 136,022 210,073 346,095 

Radio Tower 4,476 4,476 

Total Other Expenses $ 1,120,212 $ 550,685 $ 1,670,897 

TOTAL EXPENSES (Exhibit "H") $ 22,603,386 $ 1,097,422 $ 23,700,808 

- 37 -

































11/C_c-= Madison County Transit

11!1�351JJ 

Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) Report 

October 2020 

The following FOIA requests were received: 

10/21/2020 Dan Herkert of Alton, IL 

Employment, lobbying, or consulting contract between MCT and Michael Walters. 

10/23/2020 Tyler, TransitDataSupport.com 

Bus parts purchasing records from September 1, 2019 to the present. The specific 
information requested from the records: 

1. Purchase Date
2. A brief description of the product purchased
3. Manufacturer's part number and other cross or matching references as

available
4. Quantity of the product purchased
5. Price of the product purchased
6. Vendor name and address.

One Transit Way P.O. Box 7500 Granite City, IL 62040 Tel: (618) 874-7433 Fax: (618) 797-7547 

Page 62



RESOLUTION 21-14

AUTHORIZING THE FARES AND FEES  
FOR THE DISTRICT’S REGIONAL VANPOOL PROGRAM 

WHEREAS, the Madison County Mass Transit District (District) was created in December 1980 by resolution of 
the Madison County Board pursuant to Section 3 of the Local Mass Transit District Act, approved July 21, 1959, 
as amended (70 ILCS 3610/1 et. seq.); and, 

WHEREAS, the District operates the St. Louis regional rideshare program, known as RideFinders; and,

WHEREAS, one of the services offered to the region’s residents by RideFinders is the provision of a van for 
groups of commuters who have similar work times and work destinations; and,  

WHEREAS, the District has utilized Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) funds to offset the capital 
cost of the vans used in its regional vanpool program; and, 

WHEREAS, among the responsibilities of the District is the establishment and periodic adjustment of fares and 
fees for the regional vanpool program operated by the District to insure the vanpoolers pay for the operation and 
administration of the vanpool program; and, 

WHEREAS, an extensive fare revenue and fee analysis was recently completed by the staff, and staff 
recommends that a new schedule of fares and fees be adopted by the District to insure sustainability of the St. 
Louis regional vanpool program; and, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE MADISON COUNTY MASS 
TRANSIT DISTRICT THAT: 

1. The Fares and Fees as set forth in Attachment A are hereby adopted, to be made effective January 2,
2021.

2. The staff solicited comments at a public hearing on the possible adjustment and implementation of the
fares and fees. The public hearing comments are as set forth in Attachment B.

3. Ronald L. Jedda, Chairman, or J. Kelly Schmidt, Vice Chairman, and/or SJ Morrison, Managing Director,
of the Madison County Mass Transit District, are hereby authorized to take all actions necessary and
appropriate in order to implement the Fare and Fee schedule in the District’s vanpool program.

4. Ronald L. Jedda, Chairman, or J. Kelly Schmidt, Vice Chairman, and/or SJ Morrison, Managing Director,
of the Madison County Mass Transit District, are hereby authorized to execute new Vanpool Participant
agreements with participating vanpoolers, setting forth the Fares and Fees, terms and conditions, for
said program.

ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of the Madison County Mass Transit District, Madison County, Illinois, on 
this nineteenth day of November 2020. 

Ronald L. Jedda, Chairman

J. Kelly Schmidt Andrew F. Economy 

Christopher C. Guy Allen P. Adomite

APPROVED as to Form: 

Tonya Genovese, Legal Counsel



CERTIFICATE

I, Summer Moore, do hereby certify that I am the fully qualified and acting Secretary of the 
Board of Trustees of the Madison County Mass Transit District, and as such Secretary, I am 
the keeper of the records and files of the Madison County Mass Transit District. 

I do further certify that at a duly constituted and legally convened meeting of the Board of 
Trustees of the Madison County Mass Transit District held on Thursday, November 19, 2020, 
a resolution was adopted in full accordance and conformity with the by-laws of the Madison 
County Mass Transit District and the statutes of the State of Illinois, as made and provided, 
and that the following is a full, complete, and true copy of the pertinent provisions of said 
Resolution. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT THAT: 

1. The Fares and Fees as set forth in Attachment A are hereby adopted, to be made
effective January 2, 2021.

2. The staff solicited comments at a public hearing on the possible adjustment and
implementation of the fares and fees. The public hearing comments are as set forth
in Attachment B.

3. Ronald L. Jedda, Chairman, or J. Kelly Schmidt, Vice Chairman, and/or SJ
Morrison, Managing Director, of the Madison County Mass Transit District, are
hereby authorized to take all actions necessary and appropriate in order to
implement the Fare and Fee schedule in the District’s vanpool program.

4. Ronald L. Jedda, Chairman, or J. Kelly Schmidt, Vice Chairman, and/or SJ
Morrison, Managing Director, of the Madison County Mass Transit District, are
hereby authorized to execute new Vanpool Participant agreements with participating
vanpoolers, setting forth the Fares and Fees, terms and conditions, for said
program.

I further certify that the original of the complete said resolution is on file in the records of the 
Madison County Mass Transit District in my custody.  I do further certify that the foregoing 
Resolution remains in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my official signature as Secretary of the 
Madison County Mass Transit District on this nineteenth day of November 2020. 



 Proposal for RideFinders Revised Vanpool Fare Adjustment 
To: MCT Board of Trustees

From: SJ Morrison, Amanda Schomaker

Date: November 19, 2020

SUMMARY: 
In an effort to simplify the fare structure for the RideFinders Vanpool program and develop competitive 
fares to increase the number of users, staff recommends approval of the proposed Fare Chart below, to 
take effect January 1, 2021.  
An initial draft of the proposed fare chart was presented to the MCT Board of Trustees on October 29, 
2020 and Board members suggested reducing fares to make the program more competitive.  
On November 2, an e-mail with the proposed fare chart was sent to all current vanpoolers and several 
critical comments were received. Those comments can be found in the attached “Public Comments” 
document, labeled “Attachment B.” 
In response to comments from both the MCT Board and the vanpoolers, staff reconvened and reduced 
the fares, as presented below. On November 12, 2020, a virtual public meeting was held. The revised 
fare chart was presented, and vanpoolers responded much more favorably.  
The revised fare chart below includes a new category for round trip commutes less than 20 miles, and a 
discounted column for vans with 10 or more paying vanpoolers.  

Attachment A



1 

Public Perception

Positive Negative Neutral Unrelated

Public Comments Regarding Proposed Changes
January 2021 RideFinders Vanpool Fare Change

Summary of Public Comments:

RideFinders received 14 public comments.

All 14 comments were directly related to the proposed fare changes.

Of the 14 comments regarding the proposal 2 were positive, 11 were negative, and 1 was
neutral.

Of the 11 negative comments, all 11 were made prior to the public zoom meeting.

Total Comments Received: 

PUBLIC MEETING PHONE EMAIL US MAIL TOTAL COMMENTS

2 0 12 0 14 

Comments Regarding Proposed Changes
 

PUBLIC ZOOM MEETING DATE PEOPLE PRESENT COMMENTS 

Virtual Thurs. Nov 12, 2020 6 2

Type Meeting Email US Mail TOTAL 

Positive 2 - - 2 

Negative - 11 - 11

Neutral - 1 - 1

Unrelated - - - 0 

TOTAL 2 12 - 14

Attachment B



Page 2 of 3
 

RideFinders Email Comments
Proposal for January 2021 Vanpool Fare Change 

All comments have been typed as written. 

1.The only thing I don’t like is the minimum 5 riders.  It was hard enough to find four. 
 
2. I wanted to bring a thought up for you to consider.  I am a backup driver for our van pool and would 
like to request a discount on my monthly fee as I am taking a huge responsibility as a backup driver 
but get no incentive to do so.  Can you investigate the potential for a discounted monthly fee for 
people like me so we get some incentive to take on this burden and responsibility? 
 
3. I am not sure why the large jump in price for vanpooling. If that could be explained why. Also, the 
more riders the cheaper the fare...Will that still be or are they setting a flat rate based on miles Cab 
rides are great to have. Maybe have some incentive if you don't use them. Free tshirt, gift card.? 
 
4. We think this is a terrible idea. We cannot even find riders at $136 a month. If I were in your shoes I 
would be lowering the cost to attract more riders. You are literally taking the incentive away for van 
pooling. The competitor is cheaper so I strongly encourage you all to think twice before increasing the 
rates.  
 
5.  I understand the need for fee structuring based on what has happened and how things still may 
continue to be for quite a while.  The increases seem like a lot especially for the full time rider.  I am 
still riding 2 days a week.  Once I move back to full time that new fare is going to be $80 more than I 
paid as a full time rider.  That seems like a lot. 
 
6. Most of the riders on our van have been riding for at least 10 years or more.  I have been riding 
since 1999.  I imagine you may have other Ridefinders customers that have also been riding for years.  
I would like to suggest some type of frequent rider/loyalty program.  Maybe once a year a little break 
on our fare, drawings for gift cards, swag give aways, etc.  Thanks.  
 
7. From the looks of the document you are proposing to more than double what my riders are paying 
each month? What is the justification of that large of an increase? 
 
8. Many of my riders have been in the van 20 yrs. When we went to the flat scale the initial price was 
significantly higher that what we were paying before the flat rate was put into place, riders wanted to 
leave at that time. Individual groups can car pool together at a significantly lower rate that the new 
recommended price. A 10 rider or up discount would have to be quite big to offset the flat rate increase 
that is proposed. I do realize that the program is in a bad situation with COVID and appreciate what 
RF has done to make it easier on my riders since we do not have anyone working in the office. Please 
keep in mind that employers are discouraging large ride-share situations upon the return to work due 
to COVID. A large increase I fear will cause many to leave the program. 
 
9. As a primary driver of a van we are having a hard enough time trying to get people to join the van.  
As of right now we pay $136 a person and increasing it to $190 is an outrageous increase in price.  If 
this would happen we would most likely loose people.  In our case we have people that meet us half 
way and they pay the same as everyone else and if you increase the cost this much we would likely 
lose those riders.  So I would like you to strongly suggest to the board to not increase the price.   
 



Page 3 of 3
 

10. Thank you for the email regarding the proposed pricing structure for the vanpools.  Currently we 
have a difficult time picking up new riders at the current price structure so I would think that the large 
jump in price that we will see will steer potential new riders away.  Also, it looks like there is no 
incentive in having more than 5 riders on the van since the price will not change.  The current structure 
encourages riders to seek out new riders in order to lower their monthly cost. 

11. I see no way we will get 5 riders, much less 10, for our VanPool. There just are not that many 
people that live in South St. Louis and work here. Also, since so many are working from home, very 
few people come into the office. I have not ridden in the van since February or March because Sharon 
has been working from home. Your email read as though there was a survey on this page, but I see no 
survey. If your requirement goes into effect, I suspect that you will lose two more riders. 
 
12. I do not like the price increase and not willing to pay the outrageous price. I will be exploring 
different options for my transportation to and from work. 
 
 

RideFinders Zoom Meeting Comments
Proposal for January 2021 Vanpool Fare Change 

All comments have been typed as stated. 

1. Thanks to RideFinders and especially Tina for the prompt responses to our emails.  Boeing may not 
be going back to work until February or March 2021. 
 

2. I reviewed the first propose rates online. (After reviewing the tentative revised rates). Wow, this is kind.  
Thank you. When will the new rates take effect? Great, thanks.  I will share this with the other riders. 
Thanks, and stay safe. 

 



RESOLUTION 21-15
 

AUTHORIZING AN AWARD OF CONTRACT TO OATES ASSOCIATES, INC. FOR DESIGN 
SERVICES FOR SCHOOLHOUSE TRAIL TUNNEL UNDER IL 157 

 
WHEREAS, Madison County Mass Transit District (District) was created in December 1980 by 
resolution of the Madison County Board pursuant to Section 3 of the Local Mass Transit District 
Act, approved July 21, 1959, as amended (70 ILCS 3610/1 et. seq.); and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Local Mass Transit District Act, 70 ILCS 3610/5 (14) provides for the 
general powers of the Board of Trustees of the District to include “to use its established 
funds, personnel, and other resources to acquire, construct, operate and maintain bikeways 
and trails. Districts may cooperate with other governmental and private agencies in bikeway 
and trail programs”; and,  

WHEREAS, the District subsequently acquired more than 100 miles of former railroad 
alignments and developed more than 135 miles of separated Class One bikeways known as 
the MCT Trails, connecting many of the municipalities within the county; and, 

WHEREAS, the District intends to make the at grade crossing of the Schoolhouse Trail 
crossing at IL-157 in Collinsville safer for bicyclist and pedestrians; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the District requires the services of qualified firms to provide design services for 
tunnel design and site improvements for a grade separation at IL-157; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the District approved an agreement with Oates Associates, Inc. for engineering 
services to study two grade separation structure options for the Schoolhouse Trail crossing at IL-
157 on May 15, 2020; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the study with schematic design and preliminary budget have been completed for 
the proposed grade separation structure options and it was determined a tunnel was the 
preferred option; and, 
 
WHEREAS, it has been determined to be in the best interest of the District and the residents of 
Madison County, Illinois, to award a contract to Oates Associates, Inc., of Collinsville, Illinois, to 
provide engineering and survey services for the Schoolhouse Trail under IL-157, located near 
the intersection of Horseshoe Lake Road in Collinsville, Illinois. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE MADISON 
COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT THAT: 

 
1. Madison County Mass Transit District authorizes the award of a contracts with Oates 

Associates, Inc. of Collinsville, Illinois, SCI Engineering, Inc. of O’Fallon Illinois, BRIC 
Partnership, LLC of Belleville, Illinois, Faith Group of St. Louis, Missouri, and Badger 
Daylighting of Pontoon Beach, Illinois,   in the cumulative amount of two hundred fifty-
five thousand six hundred dollars ($255,600.00) to provide engineering design services 
for the Schoolhouse Trail tunnel under IL-157 in Collinsville, Illinois, subject to the terms 
and conditions of the District’s standard AIA Agreements. 

 
2. Ronald L. Jedda, Chairman, J. Kelly Schmidt, Vice Chair, and/or SJ Morrison, 

Managing Director, of the Madison County Mass Transit District, are hereby authorized 
and directed to take all action necessary to execute, complete, and perform all 
obligations associated with the contract, including any and all change orders, and to 



take any such further actions as are necessary and appropriate on behalf of and in a 
manner most beneficial to the Madison County Mass Transit District. 

ADOPTED by the Madison County Mass Transit District, Madison County, Illinois, on this 
twenty-ninth day of November 2020. 

 
Ronald L. Jedda, Chairman

 
 

J. Kelly Schmidt  Andrew F. Economy
 
 

Christopher C. Guy  Allen P. Adomite 
 

APPROVED as to Form:  
 
 

Tonya Genovese, Legal Counsel

 



CERTIFICATE 

I, Summer Moore, do hereby certify that I am the fully qualified and acting Secretary of the 
Board of Trustees of the Madison County Mass Transit District, and as such Secretary, I am the 
keeper of the records and files of the Madison County Mass Transit District. 
 
I do further certify that at a duly constituted and legally convened meeting of the Board of 
Trustees of the Madison County Mass Transit District held on Thursday, November 19, 2020, a 
resolution was adopted in full accordance and conformity with the by-laws of the Madison 
County Mass Transit District and the statutes of the State of Illinois, as made and provided, and 
that the following is a full, complete, and true copy of the pertinent provisions of said Resolution. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE MADISON 
COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT THAT: 
 
1. Madison County Mass Transit District authorizes the award of a contracts with Oates 

Associates, Inc., of Collinsville, Illinois, SCI Engineering, Inc. of O’Fallon Illinois, BRIC 
Partnership, LLC of Belleville, Illinois, Faith Group of St. Louis, Missouri, and Badger 
Daylighting of Pontoon Beach, Illinois,   in the cumulative amount of two hundred fifty-five 
thousand six hundred dollars ($255,600.00) to provide engineering design services for the 
Schoolhouse Trail tunnel under IL-157 in Collinsville, Illinois, subject to the terms and 
conditions of the District’s standard AIA Agreements. 
 

2. Ronald L. Jedda, Chairman, J. Kelly Schmidt, Vice Chair, and/or SJ Morrison, Managing 
Director, of the Madison County Mass Transit District, are hereby authorized and directed to 
take all action necessary to execute, complete, and perform all obligations associated with 
the contract, including any and all change orders, and to take any such further actions as 
are necessary and appropriate on behalf of and in a manner most beneficial to the Madison 
County Mass Transit District. 
 

I further certify that the original of the complete said resolution is on file in the records of the 
Madison County Mass Transit District in my custody. I do further certify that the foregoing 
Resolution remains in full force and effect. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my official signature as Secretary of the 
Madison County Mass Transit District on this nineteenth day of November 2020. 
 
 
 
       

      

 



 
 
 
Collinsville St. Louis Belleville St. Charles
100 Lanter Court, Suite 1
Collinsville, IL  62234 
618.345.2200 

720 Olive, Suite 700
St. Louis, MO  63101 
314.588.8381 

20 East Main Street
Belleville, IL  62220 
618.416.4688 

330 North Main, Suite 201
St. Charles, MO  63301
636.493.6277

EXHIBIT B 
November 17, 2020 
 

Mark Steyer, P.E. 
Director of Engineering 
Madison County Mass Transit District 
One Transit Way, P.O. Box 7500 
Granite City, IL 62040 
 

Re: IL Route 157/Schoolhouse Trail - Grade Separation 
   

Dear Mr. Steyer: 
 

We propose to render professional engineering and surveying services for the design of a grade separation 
structure for the Schoolhouse Trail crossing at Illinois Route 157 in Collinsville.  It is our understanding that 
this proposal will be referenced as an Attachment to AIA Document B101. 
 

Our Basic Services will consist of providing a property and topographic survey, utility coordination, design 
development, right of way coordination, construction documents, and bid assistance, all as set forth in the 
attached Exhibit C: Scope of Work and Estimated Schedule .  More specifically, our Basic Services include 
time related to constructing a cast in place box culvert, connect the existing trail to the culvert, traffic staging, 
pavement and traffic signal reconstruction on IL-157, drainage system for the culvert, security lighting, and 
security camera system.  We anticipate three submittals to MCT and IDOT: preliminary (includes TS&L), 
prefinal and PS&E. 
 

Oates Associates will manage the project and perform all the survey, civil, and structural engineering work in 
this proposal.  Our sub-consultants include BRiC Partnership, LLC who will provide lighting and electrical
engineering services, Faith Group, LLC who will provide security camera system services, SCI Engineering, 
Inc. who will provide geotechnical engineering services, Badger Daylighting who will provide utility potholing 
services, and Electrico, Inc. who will locate IDOT traffic signal utilities. 
 

The lump sum fee for Basic Services is $255,600.  This lump sum fee includes printing costs.  If requested,
we will also perform authorized Additional Services for changes in scope at the hourly rates set forth on 
Exhibit D.  We will not provide any Additional Services that increases the contract amount without prior 
approval from the District.
 

If this proposa
incorporate it into the District Please 

ent for our records.  This proposal will be open for 
acceptance until December 18, 2020, unless changed by us in writing.  If you have any questions, please do 
not hesitate to contact me.   
 

Sincerely, 
 

OATES ASSOCIATES, INC. 
 

 
Jason A. Dreyer, PE, SE Bruce P. Schopp, PE, SE 
Project Manager Project Principal 



EXHIBIT D 
HOURLY RATE SCHEDULE 

 
Principal Engineer 220.00 
Senior Professional II 200.00 
Senior Professional I 185.00 
Professional IV 170.00 
Professional III 160.00 
Professional II 130.00 
Professional I 110.00 
Junior Professional 90.00 
Technician III 130.00 
Technician II 115.00 
Technician I 90.00 
Technician 70.00 
Technician Intern 50.00 

 
The above hourly rates are effective as of July 1, 2020 and are subject to adjustment annually. 

 
 



SCI ENGINEERING, INC. 
EARTH  SCIENCE  SOLUTIONS 

GEOTECHNICAL 
ENVIRONMENTAL 

NATURAL RESOURCES 
CULTURAL RESOURCES 

CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 

650 Pierce Boulevard, O Fallon, Illinois 62269  618-624-6969  
www.sciengineering.com 

November 17, 2020 

Mr. Jason Dreyer, P.E., S.E. 
Oates Associates, Inc. 
Eastport Plaza Drive 
100 Lanter Court, Suite 1 
Collinsville, Illinois  62234 

RE: Proposal for Geotechnical Services (Revised) 
 Schoolhouse Trail Culvert at IL-157 
 Madison County, Illinois 
 SCI No. 2020-1296.10 

Dear Mr. Dreyer: 

SCI Engineering, Inc. (SCI) is providing this revised proposal for a geotechnical exploration for the above 
project.  The purpose of our geotechnical services will be to explore the subsurface conditions and 
develop design and construction recommendations for the culvert construction.  
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
SCI understands that Madison County Transit (MCT) wants to replace the existing at grade crossing of 
the Schoolhouse Trail at the intersection of IL 157 and Horseshoe Lake Road in Collinsville with a 
culvert underpass.  Based on information provided, we understand that a cast-in-place box culvert will 
likely be used.  The report will evaluate the feasibility of sheet piling for staging the construction.  There 
will not be any fill on the project, however, cuts of up to approximately 13 feet will be required.  There 
will be one mast arm foundation on the west side between the culvert and the existing bike trail entrance.  

GEOTECHNICAL SERVICES 

We will explore the subsurface conditions by advancing two CPTu soundings to a depth of 45 feet 
adjacent to the culvert structure unless penetration refusal terminates exploration at a shallower depth.  
SCI will locate the test locations in the field, by using a GPS location system with sub-meter accuracy.  If 
more detailed information is required, we recommend you survey the testing locations.   
 
The CPTu tests are conducted in accordance with ASTM D5778 Standard Test Method for Performing 
Electronic Friction Cone and Piezocone Penetration Testing of Soils.  The CPTu hydraulically pushes an 
instrumented cone through the soil, while continuous readings are recorded on a portable computer.  No 
soil samples are gathered through this subsurface investigation technique.  However, in situ 
measurements of tip and side resistance and porewater pressure are taken every one-inch.  To supplement 
the CPTu test data, continuous direct push samples will be advanced to a nominal depth of 16 feet 
adjacent to each sounding location.  Atterberg limits tests will be performed on selected direct push 
samples to aid in classification and assess the volume change characteristics of the subgrade soils. In 
additional to the soils information, a piezometer will be installed to a nominal depth of 15 feet to define 
the stabilized groundwater table around the time of exploration. 



Mr. Jason Dreyer, P.E., S.E. 2 November 17, 2020 
Oates Associates, Inc.  SCI No. 2020-1296.10 

The results of the field exploration and laboratory testing will be analyzed by our geotechnical engineer.  
Our findings and recommendations, along with supporting data, will be presented in a formal report, 
which will address each of the following:   
 

 Culvert foundation recommendations. 
 

 Shrink/swell potential of subgrade soils. 
 

 Feasibility of sheet piles for staging construction 
 

 General location, description, and disposition of existing fill materials, if encountered. 
 

 Influence of groundwater and/or bedrock, if encountered, on design and construction. 
 

 Soil parameters for use in designing the shoring system. 
 

 Site development and geotechnical construction recommendations.  
 

COST AND SCHEDULE 
 
SCI will provide the above geotechnical services for the fees listed in Table 1.   
 

Table 1 

Service 
Lump Sum Fee 

($) 

Subsurface Exploration and Laboratory Testing 

 Engineering Analyses and Report Preparation 

3,205.00 

4,225.00 

Subtotal $7,430.00 

We will schedule the fieldwork following your verbal authorization of this proposal, and should be able to 
start drilling the site, weather permitting, about a week to ten days thereafter.  We anticipate that the 
exploration will be completed in one to two days; however, we cannot mobilize the drill rig unless formal 
authorization has been received.  Laboratory testing and report preparation will require approximately 
three weeks following the field exploration; however, verbal findings should be available within a few 
days after completion of the drilling. 
 
CONDITIONS 
 

 The above fee is based on a maximum of 100 feet of soil exploration.  If the encountered 
subsurface conditions indicate that more than the planned total of soil exploration would be 
beneficial, and you authorize additional exploration, it would be provided for $25.00 per foot.   

 
 No costs associated with union labor or permits are included in this proposal. 

 
 Our fee, which is valid for up to 90 days from the date of this proposal, does not include  

out-of-scope services that might be added during the course of our work; nor does it include 



Mr. Jason Dreyer, P.E., S.E. 3 November 17, 2020 
Oates Associates, Inc.  SCI No. 2020-1296.10 

additional services that might be requested following completion of our report, such as attendance 
at project meetings; subsequent consultation; or review, signing, and sealing of project plans.  
Such services will be provided in accordance with the enclosed Acceptance of Proposal for 
Professional Services, and billed at our then-current hourly rates, or as otherwise agreed. 
 

 Traffic control is not anticipated to be needed and is not included. 
 

 This proposal assumes that you will provide site access authorization, including access to the 
proposed boring locations for a conventional, rubber-tired, all-terrain mounted, drill rig.   
 

 Clearing, grading, and removal of site obstacles, or site restoration has not been included in this 
proposal.   

 
 It also assumes that you will provide marked locations of privately owned, below-grade, utility 

lines within the project area, prior to mobilization of the drill rig.  We routinely contact the 
Illinois JULLIE system to have the locations of public utilities marked; however, we will only be 
responsible for utilities brought to our attention prior to drilling. 

 
CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES AND AUTHORIZATION 
 
Please provide formal authorization for this project by completing, signing, and returning the enclosed 
Acceptance of Proposal for Professional Services sheet.   
 
We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you on this project.  Please call if you have any 
questions; if you would like to discuss the above scope or schedule in any way; or if you would like us to 
address environmental services, archaeological or wetlands issues, or construction testing and 
observation.   
 
If you have any questions or need additional information please contact Tom Casey at 618-206-3045 or 
tcasey@sciengineering.com.  

Respectfully, 

SCI ENGINEERING, INC. 

Thomas J. Casey, P.E. 
Chief Geotechnical Engineer 

TJC/tlw 

Enclosures 
Acceptance of Proposal for Professional Services 
General Terms and Conditions 

\\sciengineering.local\shared\Projects\2020\2020-1296 Schoolhouse Trail Culvert at IL 157\Financial\2020-1296.10 Culvert Underpass IL 157 GS Proposal.docx



SCI ENGINEERING, INC. 
650 Pierce Boulevard 

 618-624-6969 
 www.sciengineering.com 

   

 
ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

 

Project Number: 2020-1296.10 / TJC         

Date: November 17, 2020         

Fee:  as detailed in the referenced proposal       

Please provide formal authorization to proceed by completing, signing, and returning this form.  The attached terms 
and conditions will apply to the services outlined in the accompanying proposal. 

Accepted By:   

Name and Title:     Address:   

Signature:      City,State,Zip:   

Company Name:     Telephone:    

Date:     Email:   

Party responsible for payment: (if different than Accepted By) 

Name and Title:     Address:   

Signature:     City,State,Zip:   

Company Name:     Telephone:    

Date:     Email:   

Report Distribution (Note: Additional printed report copies after final submittal will be billed at $25.00 each)  

Company and Contact Name: Address (Printed) or Email (Electronic): No. Printed Reports 

NOTICE TO OWNER:      (FOR SITES IN MISSOURI ONLY) 

FAILURE OF THIS CONTRACTOR TO PAY THOSE PERSONS SUPPLYING MATERIAL OR 

LIEN ON THE PROPERTY WHICH IS THE SUBJECT OF THIS CONTRACT PURSUANT TO 
CHAPTER 429.RSMo.  TO AVOID THIS RESU

DESCRIBED IN THIS CONTRACT.  FAILURE TO SECURE LIEN WAIVERS MAY RESULT IN YOU 
PAYING FOR LABOR AND MATERIAL TWICE. 











6



6

11/06/2020



 

  Page 1 of 3 

 

SCOPE OF WORK 

FOR 
Madison County Transit (MCT) Box Culvert  

FOR 
Oates Associates 

 
Prepared By 

FAITH GROUP LLC 
 

November 17, 2020 
 

 

OBJECTIVE 

 
We understand the project to include the design and construction of new box culvert to traverse under IL-157 near 
Horseshoe Lake Road in Collinsville, IL. The box culvert will require a security camera system with communication 
infrastructure necessary to provide feedback to the Madison County Transit Authority Administration Building in 
Granit City, IL. 

 
Faith Group will provide engineering consulting and design services for the following Low Voltage systems: 
 

 Security Systems 
o Video Surveillance and Camera Systems 
o Structured Cabling, Conduits, and Pathways 

 Site Network and Communications 
 
The project will be executed based on the following phases: 
 

 Preliminary Design Phase (30%) 
 Final Design Phase (100%) 
 Bidding and Construction Phase  

 
Preliminary Design Phase 
 
The following tasks will be completed during this phase of work: 

 
1. Meet with the project team and MCT stakeholders to review security system goals for the project. 
2. Develop a proposed camera system basis of design narrative, defining features, system characteristics, 

rough in and space requirements, and cost. Coordinate requirements for feedback to central 
Administration Building hub. 

3. Meet with the team to review the 30% Design 
 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 



 

  Page 2 of 3 

Deliverables: 

1. Security System outline and rough in requirements 
 
Final Design Phase 
 

1. Prepare Construction Drawings and specifications for security camera systems with plans showing 
preliminary equipment locations, system pathways, and device locations. 

2. Participate in Construction Document review and coordination meeting (one meeting) with owner and 
design team. 

3. Address review comments and update Construction Drawings and Specifications for security camera 
system. 

4. Prepare signed and sealed Construction Documents for Permitting as required. 
 
Deliverables: 

1. Updated Cost Estimate 
2. 95% and Final Construction Documents  Drawings and Specifications  
3. Signed and Sealed Permit Documents - Drawings and Specifications as required 

 
Bidding and Construction Phase 
 
The following tasks will be completed during this phase of work: 

 
1. Participate in Pre-Bid Meeting with the project team.  
2. Response to RFIs and prepare Addenda and clarifications as required. 
3. Review and analyze bids. Provide recommendations to the project team. 
4. Participate in Construction Kick-Off Meeting. 
5. Review shops drawings, product data, and other submittal to verify the construction is following the design 

intent in accordance with the Contract Documents. 
6. Respond to Requests for Information. Prepare any supplemental instructions or drawings as may be 

necessary to provide an RFI response.  
7. Provide on-site representation and inspect installation work at construction milestones (50% completion - 

Rough-Inspection) and issue field observation report. 
8. Attend periodic construction meetings as required to support the project. Assume 2 meetings during the 

construction phase. 
9. Perform site inspection at substantial completion milestone and issue final punch list. 

 
Deliverables: 

1. RFI/Addenda Responses 
2. Site observation Report and Punchlist 

 
The proposal is based on the following preliminary milestone schedule: 
 

 Preliminary Design    One (1) Month 
 Final Design     Two (2) Months  
 Construction Phase    Expected Duration 2-3 years 

 

SCHEDULE 



 

  Page 3 of 3 

 
1. Due to the overall duration of the project and the limited security camera work, Faith Group assumes that 

participation in design phase services will be limited to one (1) submission of drawing sets (for scope 
outlined in this proposal) made during the final stage of Construction Document development. This will 
ensure the most up to date technology recommendations and design criteria.  

2. Meeting participation will be limited to four (4) meetings by teleconference. 
3. The scope of work is limited to security camera systems, network and communications identified within the 

proposal. 
4. Drawings will be developed using AutoCAD or Revit and submitted in PDF Format. Specifications will be 

submitted in PDF or Word Format as required. 
5. Front End specifications will be developed by the Architect. 
6. Major changes or rework to the program, floor plan layouts, and low voltage system types, after preliminary 

drawings are complete and approved, will be considered a Change in Scope and Additional Services. 
7. The civil engineer will be responsible of all site utilities outside of the immediate building boundary. Faith 

Group will coordination requirements with civil. 
8. The project will not pursue LEED Certification 
9. Utility Company Energy Incentives are not included. 
10. Reimbursable allowance includes any required travel cost (mileage), printing, or courier services.  

 
The following is the proposed Lump Sum Fixed Fee for the scope of work: 
 

Task Name Total 

Preliminary Design Phase (Fixed Fee) $10,250.00 

Expense Allowance $250.00 
TOTAL $10,500.00 
 
If this proposal is acceptable we anticipate your firm will provide a contractual agreement for our services. We 
appreciate the opportunity and look forward to working with you towards a successful project. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Chris Fasano 
Senior Project Manager 
Faith Group, LLC 
christopher.fasano@faithgroupllc.com 
Office: 314-991-2228 
Mobile: 845-490-1358  

ASSUMPTIONS 

FEE 



Title:

Badger Hydrovac Estimate
United States 

Area Manager
Prepared By: Benji Koonce

Customer Name
Job Information

www.badgerinc.com 1 of 6



Company: Phone (o): Phone (m):
Contact: E-mail:

Office Address: Title:
Billing Address: Account #

Service Location: Misc:

Price UM Qty Amount

250.00$            /hour 10 2,500.00$          

40.00$              /load 1 40.00$              

100.00$            /Load 1 100.00$            

15.00$              /Each 2 30.00$              

125.00$            /Day 1 125.00$            

75.00$              Each 2 150.00$            

1,200.00$          /Day 1 1,200.00$          

85.00$              /hour 10 850.00$            

2.00$                /Foot 50 100.00$            

5.00% rate

Subtotal: 5,095.00$          
FFR Fee: 254.75$            

TOTAL: 5,349.75$        

Company: PO#:

Name (please print): Title:

Signature: Date:

Customer Information
Oates Associates Inc. 618-345-2200

Disposition

Remote hose

jason.dreyer@oatesassociates.comJason Dreyer

Please note that this estimate is being provided for budgetary purposes only, and all work will 
be done on a time and materials basis.   All work will be done under the terms and conditions 
contained in this Agreement.  

Fluctuating Fuel Recovery Fee (FFR Fee)

Oates Associates Inc. 

Badger Hydrovac with Operator

Water 

Scope  of Work

Union Rates  Rates apply to local 520 

11 potholes to find depths, backfill with sand, remote hose in case the bike trail is not build for heavy trucks. We will need all 
locations marked and oates to recorded depths, Traffic control 

I am authorized to bind the Company

Consumables

Chase Truck

Backfill (Sand)

Traffic Control

Additional Labor - Regular Time

3531 Hwy 111

Pontoon Beach IL

314-954-7192

"An equal opportunity employer"

PREPARED BY:

ESTIMATE

APPROVED BY:

DATE: 11/6/2020
REFERENCE #:

Benji Koonce

www.badgerinc.com 2 of 6



Printed Name: Printed Name:

Signature: Signature: 

Date: Date:

8. Zero (0) % retainage is withheld.

1. Access to the Hydrovac site, including permits and permission from property owners, utilities, and government agents.

5. Specific direction and locations for Hydrovac excavation.

2. Badger will off load material at contracted facility. Travel to and from a designated facility is considered part of the work day and charged at the hourly   rate.

3. Any additional third party services provided by Badger Daylighting outside of our typical Hydrovac activities shall be charged out at cost + __% .

3. Breaking, removal, and restoration of asphalt and or concrete unless agreed to in writing prior.

4. Establish, maintain and remediate accessible water source and disposal site. 

6. Any and all quotes, offers and transactions are pending Credit Approval by Badger.

7. Terms of Payment - Net 30 days from date of invoice. Late invoices subject to service fees.

2. Surface locates, survey marks and traffic control, if needed unless agreed to in writing prior.

10.  Currently a fluctuating fuel recovery fee will be applied to all invoices at a monthly calculated rate that is adjusted based upon the average cost of diesel as published by 
www.eia.gov. 

Client responsibility include:

4. With any Hydrovac project, there are possible additional charges that are application and site specific. For example, items such as water trucks, specialized equipment and 
attachments (remote hose, etc.), crew trucks, and other items may be required.  Rather than provide an extensive listing of all possible considerations, this is best implemented 
on a project-by-project basis and evaluated at the field operations level. The information presented in this document represents the complete proposal

5. This proposal is valid for 30 days from the date posted on this proposal document.

6. Backfill and site restoration unless agreed to in writing prior to completing work.

7. Materials to secure and cover the excavation unless agreed to in writing prior.

8. Shoring, maintenance and barricading.

9. Ownership of the soil and debris removed by the Hydrovac including any soils or material contaminated or suspect.

13. Pay for all specialized training  that is required by contractor/owner/Badger to be on the site to work.

14. Notify Badger of all billing requirements and any appropriate purchase orders, job numbers, AFE, etc. that would be necessary to release payment to Badger.  This must be 
done prior to the first day of work.

12. Any project delays caused by others that result in downtime of Badger Hydrovac units will be billed at the hourly rates.

Client Representative Badger Representative

I am authorized to bind the Company

General Notes, Conditions, & Badger Responsibilities:

www.badgerinc.com 3 of 6



are hereby expressly rejected and are void.
3.  . 

reasonably be requested by Service Provider, for the purposes of performing Services; (ii) respond promptly to any Service Provider request to provide direction, information, 
approvals, authorizations or decisions that are reasonably necessary for Service Provider to perform Services in accordance with the requirements of the service agreement; 
(iii) provide such Buyer materials or information as Service Provider may reasonably request and Buyer considers reasonably necessary to carry out Services in a timely manner 
and ensure that such Buyer materials or information are complete and accurate in all material respects; and (iv) obtain and maintain all necessary permits and consents and 
comply with all applicable laws in relation to Services before the date on which Services are to start.

business. All costs of transportation, including, without limitation, taxes and standard insurance shall be assessed by Service Provider and borne by Buyer unless otherwise 
agreed to in writing by Service Provider. Service Provider shall invoice Buyer for all shipping related costs.

transportation, and shipment. Delivery and acceptance shall not be affected by a delay on the part of Buyer in accepting delivery. Shipment of such related goods held by 

4.  
subcontractors, consultants or employees, Service Provider shall not be deemed in breach of its obligations under the service agreement or otherwise liable for any costs, 
charges or losses sustained or incurred by Buyer, in each case, to the extent arising directly or indirectly from such prevention or delay. breach of its obligations under the 
service agreement or otherwise liable for any costs, charges or losses sustained or incurred by Buyer, in each case, to the extent arising directly or indirectly from such 
prevention or delay.

5.  Taxes and Fees.  Unless expressly stated and agreed to in writing by Service Provider, quoted prices do not include any shipping and handling charges, sales, use, excise, or 
similar taxes or duties. Buyer shall pay these taxes directly if the law permits or shall reimburse Service Provider if Service Provider is required to collect and pay them.

6.  Representations and Warranties; Limitation of Remedy.  

    (a)  Service Provider represents and warrants to Buyer that it shall perform Services using personnel of required skill, experience and qualifications and in a professional and 
workmanlike manner in accordance with generally recognized industry standards for similar services and shall devote adequate resources to meet its obligations under the 
service agreement.

    (b)  Service Provider shall not be liable to a breach of the warranty set forth in Section 6(a) unless Buyer gives written notice of the defective Services, reasonably described, 
to Service Provider with three (3) days of the time when Buyer discovers or ought to have discovered that Services were defective.
    (c)  The sole and exclusive remedy of Buyer for any liability of Service Provider of any kind, including (i) warranty, express or implied, whether contained in the terms and 

all Services. This limited warranty shall not extend to any Services that have been modified, disassembled, altered, changed, damaged, misused, repaired, misapplied or 
negligently maintained in any manner. 
    (d)  EXCEPT FOR THE EXPRESS LIMITED WARRANTY SET FORTH IN SECTION 6(a) ABOVE, SERVICE PROVIDER MAKES NO WARRANTY WHATSOEVER WITH RESPECT TO 
SERVICES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING ANY (i) WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY; OR (ii) WARRANTY OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE; OR (iii) WARRANTY 
OF TITLE; OR (iv) WARRANTY AGAINST INFRINGEMENT OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS OF A THIRD PARTY; WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED BY LAW, COURSE OF 
DEALING, COURSE OF PERFORMANCE, USAGE OF TRADE OR OTHERWISE.

BADGER DAYLIGHTING CORP. STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS (USA)

1.  Definitions.

of America. 

2.  Terms of Service Agreement Acceptance and Complete Agreement

www.badgerinc.com 4 of 6



13.  Cancellation.  Except as otherwise expressly provided in a statement of work, the service agreement shall be cancelled only by mutual written consent of the parties. 
Notice is hereby given that Service Provider shall not consent to cancellation if Buyer has bound itself to purchase Services. If Buyer is in default by failure to pay any previous 
invoice within credit terms at the expected date of performance of Services or any part thereof, has not otherwise performed or complied with any of the terms of the service 
agreement, in whole or in part; or becomes insolvent, files a petition for bankruptcy or commences or has commenced against it proceedings relating to bankruptcy, 
receivership, reorganization or assignment for the benefit of creditors, or if Service Provider has received any adverse credit information about Buyer, Service Provider may 
delay performance and/or cancel performance of Services without liability. In the event of U.S. or foreign government intervention, trade restrictions, and/or quotas, which 

event any Services shall become subject to any governmental fees or duties not presently in effect or to any increase in any existing fee or duty, including any antidumping 
duty or countervailing duty, Service Provider shall have the right to cancel performance of Services without liability.

14.  Default.  If Buyer breaches or is otherwise in default under the service agreement or under any other contract between the parties hereto, Service Provider at its sole 
option, may defer performance of Services until the default is cured, or may treat the default as a repudiation by Buyer of the service agreement in its entirety, and hold Buyer 

15.  Waiver.  No waiver by Service Provider of any of the provisions of the service agreement is effective unless explicitly set forth in writing and signed by Service Provider. No 
failure to exercise, or delay in exercising, any rights, remedy, power or privilege arising from the service agreement operates or may be construed as a waiver thereof. No 
single or partial exercise of any right, remedy, power or privilege hereunder precludes any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, remedy, power 
or privilege.

8.  Rejection or Claims.  A rejection of Services for non-conformity, or a claim of incomplete performance and/or damage by Buyer, shall not be effective unless it is made, and 
written notice thereof is given to Service Provider, within thirty (30) days after Services are provided to Buyer; or, with respect to any goods related to Services, within thirty 

non-conforming Services and to determine lack of conformity in its sole discretion.

9.  Performance Dates.  Service Provider shall use reasonable efforts to meet any performance dates specified in the service agreement, and any such dates shall be estimates 
only.

FOLLOWING PROPER AND TIMELY NOTICE BY BUYER. IN NO EVENT SHALL SERVICE PROVIDER BE LIABLE TO BUYER OR TO ANY THIRD PARTY FOR ANY LOSS OF USE, 
REVENUE, OR PROFIT; OR FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, EXEMPLARY, SPECIAL OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHETHER ARISING OUT OF BREACH OF 
CONTRACT, TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE) OR OTHERWISE, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER SUCH DAMAGES WERE FORESEEABLE AND WHETHER OR NOT SERVICE PROVIDER 
HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES, AND NOTWITHSTANDING THE FAILURE OF ANY AGREED OR OTHER ESSENTIAL PURPOSE. IN NO EVENT SHALL 

CONTRACT, TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE) OR OTHERWISE, EXCEED THE AGGREGATE AMOUNTS PAID OR PAYABLE TO SERVICE PROVIDER.  Buyer agrees to indemnify 
and hold Service Provider harmless from and against all liabilities, claims, or demands of third parties of any kind relating to Services and the use of any related goods arising 

10.  Failure to Take Delivery.

subject to confirmation at time of acceptance of any resulting Service Agreement. Service Provider reserves the right to make either early delivery or partial delivery upon prior 
notice to Buyer as provided in Section 23 hereof and to invoice Buyer accordingly.

11.    Title and Risk of Loss or Damage. Title, risk of loss and/or damage shall pass to Buyer when any goods related to Services are made available to the carrier at Service 

12.   Payment Terms
when due will be a material breach of the service agreement and these Standard Terms and Conditions of Services.  Amounts unpaid after such date shall bear interest from 
the date of the invoice at a rate of one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month, or eighteen percent (18%) per annum. Service Provider shall be entitled to reimbursement from 

without incurring any liability, may suspend its performance of Services until such time as any overdue payment is made or Service Provider receives assurances, adequate in 

adjustment made to the remaining performance schedule and pricing to reflect the duration and cost resulting from such suspension. Buyer may only suspend performance 

promptly pay Service Provider for all costs, including related overhead costs, resulting from such suspension.  All terms of the Credit Application are incorporated into and are 

BADGER DAYLIGHTING CORP. STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS (USA)

7. Limitation of Liability. 

www.badgerinc.com 5 of 6



End

23.  Notices.
at the addresses set forth in the service agreement or to such other address that may be designated by the receiving party in writing. All Notices shall be delivered by personal 
delivery, nationally recognized overnight courier (with all fees prepaid), facsimile (with confirmation of transmission) or certified or registered mail (in each case, return receipt 
requested, postage prepaid). Except as otherwise provided in the service agreement, a Notice is effective only (a) upon receipt of the receiving party, and (b) if the party giving 
the Notice has complied with the requirements of this Section. 

24.  Governing Law; Venue.  All matters involving the validity, interpretation and application of these Standard Terms and Conditions of Services will be controlled by the laws 
of the State of Indiana, United States of America and Buyer and Service Provider hereby irrevocably consent to the jurisdiction of the state and federal courts located in 
Marion County, Indiana for the resolution of any disputes arising under these Standard Terms and Conditions of Services and the service agreement.

BADGER DAYLIGHTING CORP. STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS (USA)

16.  Force Majeure.  Service Provider shall be free from any liability for delay or failure in performance of Services arising from strikes, lockouts, labor troubles of any kind, 
accidents, perils of the sea, fire, earthquake, civil commotion, terrorist acts, war or consequences of war, government acts, restrictions or requisitions, failure of manufacturers 
or suppliers to deliver, bankruptcy or insolvency of manufacturers or suppliers, suspension of shipping facilities, act or default of carrier or any other contingency of 

or a statement of work. In such a situation, if performance is not made during the period contracted for, Buyer shall accept performance under the service agreement when 
performance is made; provided, however, Buyer shall not be obligated to accept performance if performance is not made within a reasonable time after the cessation of the 
aforementioned impediments or causes.

18.  Confidential Information.  (a) All non-public, confidential or proprietary information of Service Provider, including, but not limited to, trade secrets, technology, information 

Service Provider to Buyer, whether disclosed orally or disclosed or accessed in written, electronic or other form or media, and whether or not marked, designated or otherwise 

prior written consent of Service Provider. Confidential Information does not include information that is (i) in the public domain; (ii) known to Buyer at the time of the 
disclosure; or (iii) rightfully obtained by Buyer on a non-confidential basis from a third party. 
(b) Buyer agrees to use the Confidential Information only to make use of Services, and deliverables. 
(c) Service Provider shall be entitled to injunctive relief for any violation of this Section.
19.  Integration.  The service agreement, these Standard Terms and Conditions of Services, and a statement of work supersede all prior negotiations, representations, 
agreements, quotes and catalogues, whether written or oral, and shall not be modified, supplemented or interpreted by evidence of course of dealing, course of performance 
or usage of trade. To the extent the provisions hereof conflict with any prior or subsequent agreement of the parties, these Standard Terms and Conditions of Services will 
control. Any amendment to these Standard Terms and Conditions of Services must be in writing and signed by both parties.

20.  Assignment.  Buyer acknowledges that no service agreement or statement of work, nor the obligations represented thereby, may be assigned or delegated, in whole or in 

termination of the service agreement.  

21.  Severability.  Service Provider and Buyer agree that each and every paragraph, sentence, clause, term and provision of these Standard Terms and Conditions of Services is 
severable and that, in the event any portion hereof is adjudged to be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining portions shall remain in full force and effect to the fullest extent 
permitted by law.

22.  Relationship of the Parties.  The relationship between the parties is that of independent contractors. Nothing contained in these Standard Terms and Conditions of 
Services or the service agreement shall be construed as creating any agency, partnership, joint venture or other form of joint enterprise, employment or fiduciary relationship 
between the parties; and neither party shall have authority to contract for or bind the other party in any manner whatsoever.  

17.  Intellectual Property.  All the designs, know-how, innovations, inventions and discoveries related to Services provided under this transaction shall be and remain the 
property of Service Provider. 

www.badgerinc.com 6 of 6



EXHIBIT C
Scope of Work and Estimated Schedule

 

IL-157/Schoolhouse Trail - Grade Separation  Professional Services Contract
Oates Associates, Inc.  page 1 of 5 November 2020

BASIC SERVICES - ($255,600 Estimated fee) 
 
Task 1: Field Surveys - $14,100 (about 5-weeks starting in December 2020). 
 

Task 1.1 Establish horizontal & vertical control 
 Set control point coordinates and elevations using GPS 
 Traverse between control points in field 
 Elevation loop between benchmarks in field 
 Office calculations - coordinates, elevations, closure 

Task 1.2 Topography 
 Locate existing utilities  contact JULIE and measure depth to exposed utilities  
 IDOT utility locate  coordinate with sub to locate IDOT utilities 
 Pavement corings  assume 1 core with no traffic control 
 Topographic survey  profile and cross sections of surface features within affected project area

Task 1.3 Process survey data for CADD 
 Draw existing topo 
 Create and process TIN surface 
 Field review  edit topo and TIN 

Task 1.4 Staking 
 Stake soil boring locations and tie in after completion  2 soil borings by sub 
 Locate utility conflict potholes  excavations competed by sub 

 
Task 2: Utility Coordination - $11,800 (about 4-weeks starting in December 2020) 
 

 Request type, size and location of existing facilities  send top drawing to utilities 
 Verify type, size and location of existing facilities  send preliminary plans to utilities 
 Confirm conflicts and verify adjustment and relocation work  assume 5 companies for 

coordination 
 Coordination meetings with utilities  assume 3 companies will require additional coordination
 Review utility adjustment and relocation plans from utilities 

 
Task 3: Geotechnical Report - $1,400 (about 6-weeks starting in December 2020).   
 

 Oates coordination and review of report completed by sub 
 

Task 4: Type, Size & Location Plans - $17,700 (about 6-weeks starting in February 2021). 
 

Task 4.1 Develop TS&L plan sheets 
 General plan and elevation and details with IDOT required data 
 Develop design drawing of culvert and wings 

Task 4.2 Design tasks 
 Culvert final layout and preliminary design 
 Wingwall final layout and preliminary design  assume wings similar to LeClaire Junction Tunnel 
 Evaluate staging and temporary soil retention  assume 3 stages 
 Prepare Structure Report  IDOT form BBS 153 
 Prefinal submittal to IDOT 
 Final submittal to IDOT  revisions and disposition of BBS comment 
 Internal and external coordination 

 
Task 5: Structure Plans - $66,400 (about 20-weeks starting in June 2021).   
 

Task 5.1 Culvert plan sheets 
 General plan and elevation  update TS&L general plan sheet 
 Construction details  staging and temporary soil retention 
 Structure details  culvert barrel details 



EXHIBIT C
Scope of Work and Estimated Schedule

 

IL-157/Schoolhouse Trail - Grade Separation  Professional Services Contract
Oates Associates, Inc.  page 2 of 5 November 2020

 Wingwall details  assume form lined and similar to LeClaire Junction Tunnel 
 Railing details  assume ornamental fencing similar to LeClaire Junction Tunnel 
 Bar splicer details  IDOT base sheet 
 Soil boring logs  from geotechnical report 
 Mast arm foundation details  relocating mast arm on SW corner of intersection 

 
Task 5.2 Culvert design tasks 

 Plan Development Outline  assume IDOT Bureau of Bridges and Structures will require 
 Revise and finalize layout 
 Barrel design  design and detail single box and headwalls, assume 3 stages 
 Wingwall design  design and detail wingwalls similar to LeClaire Junction Tunnel 
 Approach slab  detailing of approach slab, special detailing for drains and seat on culvert 
 Railing layout  railing layout and work through details 
 Temporary soil retention layout 
 Quantities  assume updated/revisions at each submittal stage 
 Special provisions 
 Estimate of cost  assume updated/revisions at prefinal and final 
 Estimate of time  assume updated/revisions at prefinal and final  
 Prefinal submittal to MCT and IDOT 
 Final plans  revisions and disposition of comment 
 Internal and external coordination, including cameras and electrical facilities 
 Shop drawing review  assume two reviews for railing and shoring, also camera and electrical
 Mast arm foundation design  move mast arm on SW quadrant 

 
Task 6: Drainage - $6,400 (about 2-weeks starting in February 2021)    
 

Task 6.1 Storm sewer design for draining tunnel to Schoolhouse Branch creek 
 Storm sewer schematic layout 
 Drainage area computations 
 Inlet computations / type, size and layout 
 Storm sewer computations / type and size 
 "404" permit required for in-stream work (storm sewer and riprap) 
 Final storm sewer layout 

Task 6.2 Extend IDOT culvert in SW corner of Horseshoe Lake Road & IL-157 intersection 
 Culvert profile and layout  no design required 

 
Task 7: Preliminary Road Plans - $24,700 (about 10-weeks starting in February 2021) 
 

Task 7.1: Design criteria & data collection for roadway staging and bike trail design 
 Develop design criteria for bike trail 
 Develop existing and proposed typical sections  review cores and/or as built plans to determine 

IL-157 pavement structure and develop trail section 
Task 7.2: Horizontal alignment 

 Set centerline location for IL-157 and bike trail 
 Lay out pavement, shoulders, medians for IL-157  draw topo using aerial images 
 Review right-of-way requirements  determine if ROW is needed for trail or storm sewer 

Task 7.3: Vertical alignment 
 Set centerline profile for bike trail 
 Review utility conflicts for bike trail 

Task 7.4: Preliminary design development 
 Develop construction staging  assume 3 stages and Horseshoe Lake Road is closed and 

detoured to Eastport Plaza Drive 
Task 7.5: Preliminary plan development  for bike trail and IL-157 

 Plan  alignment, stationing, and curve data 



EXHIBIT C
Scope of Work and Estimated Schedule

 

IL-157/Schoolhouse Trail - Grade Separation  Professional Services Contract
Oates Associates, Inc.  page 3 of 5 November 2020

 Construction limits for bike trail 
 List right-of-way owners on plan sheets 
 Profiles  grades, elevations and curved data 
 Structural plan coordination 

Task 7.6: Preliminary cross sections & earthwork 
 Cut existing sections and develop existing cross-section elevations 
 Proposed roadway templates 
 Calculate end areas and earthwork estimate  

Task 7.7: Environmental, historical and cultural permitting  confirm study 
Task 7.8: Submittals 

 Preliminary plan  submit to MCT and IDOT 
 Respond to comments from agencies 

 
 
Task 8: Final Road Plans - $37,500 (about 10-weeks starting in August 2021) 
 

Task 8.1: Cover sheet 
 Location map and project limits 
 Index of sheets 
 Standard drawings index 
 General notes 

Task 8.2: Quantities 
 Pay items and code numbers 
 Pavement schedule and quantities  shoulder widening for stage construction 
 Storm sewer schedule and quantities  
 Pavement markings schedule and quantities  bike trail and IL-157 pavement replacement 
 Removals schedule and quantities 
 Earthwork schedule and quantities  label cross section sheets 
 Other schedules and quantities  staging items 
 Summary of quantity schedule  check that SOQ matches schedules 

Task 8.3: Typical cross sections 
 Refine existing and proposed typical sections  label pay items and thicknesses 

Task 8.4: Maintenance of traffic (assume 3 stages and Horseshoe Lake Road is closed and detoured to 
Eastport Plaza Drive) 
 Develop construction staging  refine preliminary design 
 Staging notes 
 Staging details 
 Detour plans 
 Traffic control plans  assume 3 stages with double plan sheets 

Task 8.5: Traffic signal plans  to move SW mast arm and reinstall detector loops 
 Copy existing intersection signal plans and modify as needed  includes quantity calculation and 

schedule 
 Add signal head for EB Rt turn slip lane for ADA access across 157/HLR, includes wiring plan 

sheet and signal wring sheet 
Task 8.6: Specialty plan sheets 

 Pavement markings and signing  for bike trail and IL-157 
 Erosion control 
 Bus shelter location, sidewalk layout details, pad, coordination with IDOT 

Task 8.7: Plan & Profile sheets  finalize bike trail plan & profile 
 Plan  label alignment, stationing and curve data 

Task 8.8: Cross Sections  bike trail 
 Hand edits 
 Proposed ditches/ culverts/ storm sewer 
 Earthwork end areas  update preliminary 



EXHIBIT C
Scope of Work and Estimated Schedule

 

IL-157/Schoolhouse Trail - Grade Separation  Professional Services Contract
Oates Associates, Inc.  page 4 of 5 November 2020

Task 8.9: Contract documents 
 Check sheets 
 Supplemental specifications 
 Interim special provisions (ISP) 
 Special provisions 
 Estimate of time 
 Estimate of cost  prefinal submittal 

Task 8.10: Final PS&E submittal 
 Plot and assemble final plans 
 Final cost estimate 
 Copy and assemble contract documents 
 Final submittal and close-out 
 Obtaining signatures  drive to MCT to get signatures 

 
Task 9: Sanitary Sewer Relocation - $8,200 (about 3-weeks starting in February 2021) 
 

 Horizontal alignment 
 Vertical alignment 
 Determine staging  sewer must remain in operation during construction 
 IEPA permit 
 Plan sheets  cover, plan and details sheets 
 IEPA comments 
 Sewer specifications 
 Cost estimate 
 Coordination  with City of Collinsville 

 
Task 10: Right of Way - $12,500 (about 4-weeks starting in December 2020) 
 

Task 10.1: Survey 
 Research record information  courthouse and IDOT 
 Review title reports  assume 3 
 Locate and tie existing monumentation 
 Reconcile monumentation with record information 
 Establish existing ROW and property lines 
 Supplemental ROW search 

Task 10.2: Documents 
 Set proposed easements 
 Calculate bearings and distances, stations and offsets 
 Calculate lot closures and areas 
 Prepare legal descriptions 
 Prepare parcel plats 

Task 10.3: Submittals 
 Review ROW needs with Client 
 Final submittal  all documents 

 
Task 11: Bid Assistance - $5,300 (about 2-weeks starting in February 2022) 
 

 Front end documents  work with MCT 
 Bid opening meeting  attend opening at MCT 
 Bid tab review and formal recommendation  review lump sum bid tab and comment on award
 Prebid meeting  attend meeting 
 RFC responses and issue addenda  issue two addendums during bidding 

 
Task 12: Project Administration - $18,300 (about 16 months starting in December 2020) 



EXHIBIT C
Scope of Work and Estimated Schedule

 

IL-157/Schoolhouse Trail - Grade Separation  Professional Services Contract
Oates Associates, Inc.  page 5 of 5 November 2020

 
 Scope of work reviews 
 Project coordination 
 Budget control 
 Time approval, manpower and staff planning 
 Project team meetings (including start-up meeting) 
 Contract administration 
 Billings 

 
Subconsultant Electrico, Inc. - $1,120 

Locate IDOT traffic signal utilities within project limits. 
 

Subconsultant Badger Daylighting - $5,350 
Utility potholing services (Assumed 11 pothole locations); for detailed scope of work, see attached proposal. 

 
Subconsultant SCI Engineering, Inc. - $7,430 

Geotechnical services; for detailed scope of work, see attached proposal. 
 

Subconsultant BRiC Partnership, LLC - $6,400 
Electrical services; for detailed scope of work, see attached proposal. 

 
Subconsultant Faith Group, LLC - $10,500 

Security camera services; for detailed scope of work, see attached proposal. 
 
Reimbursable Expenses: $500 (Printing) 

 Assume bound specifications, 200 pages, 5 copies 
 Assume plans for bidding are 11x17, 40 sheets, 5 copies 
 Assume plans for construction are 22x34, 40 sheets, 5 copies 

 
ITEMS NOT INCLUDED IN THE SCOPE OF WORK 

 
1. LEED design. 
2. Permit fees  assumed paid by the District. 
3. ROW negotiations and acquisitions  may be negotiated later if necessary. 
4. Construction phase services  may be negotiated later. 
5. Advertising for bids and plan distribution will be handled by the District. 
6. Improvements to IDOT facilities, all IDOT facilities will be replaced in-kind. 
7. Utility agreements  assume completed by the District. 
8. Load rating of culvert  not clear if IDOT will require, may be negotiated later if necessary. 
9. Traffic control and maintenance of traffic if Horseshoe Lake Road is not closed to traffic and detoured to 

Eastport Plaza Drive. 
 


	Agenda
	10/29/20 Meeting Minutes
	FY2020 Audit
	Payments & Claims
	Monthly Financial Report
	Resolution 21-14 Vanpool Fares & Fees
	Resolution 21-15 Design Services for IL-157 Tunnel



